10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

DM

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE

- INCORPORATED 1653-
MAINE'S FINEST RESORT

Board of Selectmen
Village Fire Station — 32 North Street
July 13, 2017 - 7:00 PM

. Call to Order.

. Approve the June 17, 21, and 30, 2017, selectmen meeting minutes.

Public Forum (This is an opportunity for anyone who wants to address
the Board of Selectmen with any issue that is not on the agenda.)

Consider a renewal liquor license application submitted by Captain Jefferds
Inn, LLC., d.b.a. Captain Jefferds Inn, 5 Pearl St.

. Request to waive tent permit fee for Circus Smirkus.

Consider dock application to construct a 4ft x 65 ft pier with associated
ramp and float at 37 Langsford Road.

. Police Chief Sanford presents security and law enforcement issues relative

to recreational marijuana.

. Consider funding study analyzing FEMA Flood Maps.

. Communications from Goose Rocks Beach Advisory Committee regarding

the need for public bathrooms and a request from Central Maine Power
Company regarding the frequency of power outages at Goose Rocks Beach.

Consider telecommunications ordinance.

Consider Land Use Ordinance amendment re: growth permits and
accessory apartments for the November warrant.

Authorization to enter into a contract with Wright-Pierce Engineers for the
design and bid of the Parks and Recreation Building.

Consider request to extend sewer on Mills Rd.

Appoint Boards/Committees.

v R4&A A Bl Qteaat Konnahunlbaort Maine Dd0dA o Tels (207 0A7-4747 Faxe (7)Y 967-R470



15. Appoint Selectmen Representatives to Boards/Committees
16. Other business.
17. Approve the July 13, 2017, Treasurer’s Warrant.

18. Adjournment.



<

Agenda
iiem
Divider

<G



Town of Kennebunkport
Board of Selectmen Meeting
June 17, 2017 - Immediately following the Annual Town Meeting
Consolidated School, School Street
Minutes of the Selectmen’s Meeting of June 17, 2017

Selectmen Attending: Stuart E. Barwise, Patrick A. Briggs, Sheila Matthews-
Bull, Allen A. Daggett, and Ed Hutchins

Others: Tracey O’Roak, Laurie A. Smith, and others

1. Call to Order.

Town Clerk Tracey O’Roak called the meeting to order at 9:40 AM.
2. Elect a Chair.

Motion by Selectmen Barwise, seconded by Selectman Daggett, to nominate
Patrick A. Briggs as chair of the Board of Selectmen. Vote: 5-0.

3. Elect a Vice-Chair.

Motion by Selectmen Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Daggett, to
nominate Edward Hutchins as vice-chair of the Board of Selectmen. Vote:
5-0.

4. Other business and communications.

There was no other business.
5. Adjournment.

Motion by Selectman Barwise, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to
adjourn.

The meeting adjourned at 9:42 AM.
Submitted by

Laurie A. Smith
Town Manager






Town of Kennebunkport
Board of Selectmen Meeting
June 21, 2017
9:00 AM - Town Hall, 6 Elm Street

Minutes of the Selectmen’s Meeting of June 21, 2017

Selectmen Attending: Stuart Barwise, Patrick A. Briggs, Sheila Matthews-Bull
and Allen Daggett.

Selectmen absent: Edward Hutchins

Others: Laurie Smith, Werner Gilliam, Tracey O’Roak, J. Steven Kingston and
Colby Kingston

1.

Call to Order.
Chairman Briggs, called the meeting to order at 9:02 AM.

Approve the June S and 8, 2017 selectmen meeting minutes.
Motion by Selectman Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Daggett, to
approve the June 5, 2017 selectmen meeting minutes. VOTE: 3-0
(Selectman Barwise abstained because he was not present at that
meeting.)

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Barwise, to
approve the June 8, 2017 selectmen meeting minutes. VOTE: 3-0
(Selectman Matthews-Bull abstained because she was not present at that
meeting

Public Forum (This is an opportunity for anyone who wants to
address the Board of Selectmen with any issue that is not on the
agenda.)

There were no comments.

Public Hearing to consider application for victualer’s license for J.
Steven Kingston, DBA Satellite Doughnuts, 4 Spring Street.

Chairman Briggs opened the public hearing at 9:07 AM.
Mr. Kingston gave additional information on the doughnut shop. Colby

Kingston will be the manager of the shop. It will be seasonal from May to
October, however, they may also open during Prelude.



Chairman Briggs closed the public hearing at 9:08 AM.

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull to
approve the application for victualer’s license. VOTE: 4-0

Appoint Becky Nolette as Assessor’s Agent.

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Barwise to appoint
Becky Nolette as Assessor’s Agent. VOTE: 4-0

Approve the proclamation recognizing David Kling as the recipient
of the 2017 Spirit of America Award.

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Barwise to
approve the proclamation recognizing David Kling as the recipient of the
2017 Spirit of America Award. VOTE: 4-0

Approve the proclamation recognizing the 150tk birthday of Canada.

Motion by Selectman Barwise, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull to
approve the proclamation recognizing the 150% birthday of Canada.
VOTE: 4-0

Sign the supplemental Certificate of Commitment of Sewer User
Rates.

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Barwise to sign
the supplemental Certificate of Commitment of Sewer User Rates. VOTE:
4-0

Other Business.

Selectman Matthews-Bull pointed out a piece of property on Langsford
Road that has a flower garden planted next to the road on Town owned
property. She questioned whether the Town should ask for an easement
similar to another property on that road. Ms. Smith and Mr. Gilliam
advised that they would look at the property in question to make a
determination.

Ms. Smith reminded the Board that there will be a short meeting on June
30th to sign the end of fiscal year warrant.

Ms. Smith also advised that there will be an executive session on July 6,
2017. It will probably be at 3 p.m. but she needs to confirm with the
Town attorney to see if she is available at that time.



10. Approve the June 21, 2017 Treasurer’s Warrant.

Motion by Selectman Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Daggett to
approve the June 21, 2017 Treasurer’s Warrant. VOTE: 4-0

11. Adjournment.

Motion by Selectman Matthews-Bull to adjourn, seconded by Selectman
Daggett. VOTE: 4-0

The meeting was adjourned at 9:14 AM
Submitted by

Laurie A. Smith
Town Manager



<
Agenda

ltem
Divider

g



Town of Kennebunkport
Board of Selectmen Meeting
June 30, 2017
9:00 AM - Town Hall, 6 Elm Street

Minutes of the Selectmen’s Meeting of June 30, 2017

Selectmen Attending: Stuart Barwise, Patrick A. Briggs, Edward Hutchins,
Sheila Matthews-Bull and Allen Daggett.

Others: Laurie Smith, Tracey O'Roak, and Jim Black

Call to Order.

Chairman Briggs, called the meeting to order at 9:00 AM.
Approve the June 30, 2017 Treasurer’s Warrant.

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Barwise, to
approve the June 30, 2017 Treasurer’s Warrant. VOTE: 5-0

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Daggett, to sign
the June 30, 2017 Treasurer’s Warrant. VOTE: 5-0

Appoint Jim Black as Assistant Harbormaster.

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Barwise to
appoint Jim Black as Assistant Harbormaster. VOTE: 5-0

Adjournment.

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Barwise to
adjourn. VOTE: 5-0

The meeting was adjourned at 9:13 AM

Submitted by

Laurie A. Smith
Town Manager



&%
Agenda

ltem
Divider

g



/ é_f )
(> Captoin S28eads Thn
1Ll

This application has been reviewed and approved by the following Municipal Officials,
whose signatures are on file with the Town Clerk:

Police Chief

\/ Fire Inspector

‘/ Code Enforcement Officer

j_/\;‘-—c—-«-\ SWook___ Town Clerk




DIVISION USE ONLY

BUREAU OF ALCOHOL BEVERAGES AND LOTTERY OPERATIONS

DIVISION OF LIQUOR LICENSING AND ENFORCEMENT Liccnsc No:
8 STATE HOUSE STATION, AUGUSTA, ME 04333-0008 Class. By:
10 WATER STREET, HALLOWELL, ME 04347 S
TEL: {207) 624-7220 FAX: (207) 287-3434 e
EMAIL INQUIRIES: MAINELIQUOR@MAINE.GOV Amt. Deposited:
Cnsh Ck Mo:

NEW application: 1 Yes = No
PRESENT LICENSE EXPIRES08/02/2017

INDICATE TYPE OF PRIVILEGE: = MALT ®&viNous [ SPIRITUOUS

INDICATE TYPE OF LICENSE:
[0 RESTAURANT (Class LILULIV) [ RESTAURANT/LOUNGE (Class XI) 3CLASS A LOUNGE (Class X)
O HOTEL ({Cless LILIILIV) O HOTEL, FOOD OPTIONAL {Class 1-A) EBED & BREAKFAST (Cluss V)
[ CLUB w/o Catering (Class V) {0 CLUB with CATERING {Class I) COGOLF COURSE (Class LILULIV)
O TAVERN (Class 1V) 0 QUALIFIED CATERING (J OTHER:

REFER TO PAGE 3 FOR FEE SCHEDULE
ALL QUESTIONS MUST BE ANSWERED IN FULL

Corporation Name: Business Name (D/IB/A)
Captain jefferds Inn, LLC Captain Jefferds Inn
APPLICANT(S) -(Sole Proprictor) DOB: Physical Location:
Sarah M Lindblom 04/07/48 5 Pearl Street
DOB: City/Town State Zip Code
Erik A Lindblom 02/24/43 Kennebunkport, ME 04046
Address Mailing Address
7 Fisher's Lane PO Box 691
City/Tawn State Zip Code City/Town State Zip Code
Kennebunkport, ME 04046 Kennebunkport, ME 04046
Telephone Number Fux Number Business Telephone Number Fax Number
207 204-0118 207 967-2311
Federal 1D, # Seller Certificate #:
) or Sales Tax #: 1 082845
Ernil Address: Website;
Please Print Sal'ah@Cap’lain}efferdsinn.com WWW.captainjefferdsinn_com

If business is NEW or under new ownership, indicate starting date:

Requested inspection date: Business houss:

1. If premise is a Hotel or Bed & Breakfust, indicate number of rooms available for transient guests: 16
2. Siate amount of gross income from period of last license; ROOMS $ 821,000 froops 1.200 LIQUOR §5.500

3. Is applicant a corporation, limited fiability company or limited partnership?  YES @ NO O
If Yes, please complete the Corporate Information required for Business Entities who are licensees.

4. Do you own or have any interest in any another Maine Liquor License? 83 Yes No
I yes, please fist License Number, Name, ond physical lecation of any other Maine Liquor Licenses.

(Use an additional sheet(s) if necessary.)

Licensc # Nome of Dusiness

Physical Location Cuy / Town

On Premise Rev. 6-2067






KCPTA

Kennebunkport Consolidated School
25 School Street

Kennebunkport, ME 04046

June 28, 2017

Board of Selectmen

Town of Kennebunkport
P.0. Box 566, 6 Elm Street
Kennebunkport, ME 04046

Dear Board of Selectmen,

The Kennebunkport Consolidated PTA (KCPTA) is hosting the children’s circus
“Circus Smirkus” again this year at Rockin’ Horse Stables on August 10t and 11
This is the KCPTA’s ONE fundraiser for the entire year. All of the money we make by
hosting the circus is used to enrich the curriculum for KCS students - to pay for field
trips throughout the school year and to provide activities, equipment, and materials
to the students that are not covered in the annual school budget.

As the KCPTA is a non-profit, and the proceeds that come from hosting the circus
directly benefit the children who attend KCS, we would like to request that the
Selectmen waive the usual Tent Permit Fee, as you have generously done in
previous years.

Respectfully,

SRR

Dave Powell

Vice President of Technelogy & Communications
KCPTA



<
Agenda

ltem
Divider

<41



jo

1woYs

‘aurey ‘astodiod ade) ur peoy p10js3ue L€ 18 3UIPISIY

SS/AL :4g payesa

16+0-98¢ (£0T) ¥Xed  661T-L£8 (L0OT)
0£5H0 ANIVIAN ‘HLVE +2T X0d "0'd
SLNV.LTNSNOD TVY.INIWNOYUIANT

NI SLSATYNY-0D4

18U")SEIODTHIAISALI0 LI

&

1aunng prempd 10§ ueld 1eof % dwey ‘a1 pasodoid | £10z/91/€ :areq
1 op = yout | ; i A
( 1334 NI ) . Vi
MWH'N

(3340 s.AQavd _
40 14vd) . o
441
] .u.ﬂ_
1459X1 4+ @ISOdPHd (13940 s.AGAQVd
.-, 407Myd)
z ” I & o, e
| u w # w % oy
(| & -, I
S i I qu
7 o
o
L. >
el "Gt o
V. 3 ani
_ ALY3d0O¥d
E yalLingy
(7]
_ 8-
Y ﬂ
)?. 'y n
#.m._._le“.;.-..r _,.H..-_. ”.M't . w 1 /
4 .m. 4 | W
- m i
’ .I.....ﬂ ¥ _“' ..I.I..l..!i...m_......u.t-:.ﬂil — L:
._.n. | | 1.# - : -, .
e | _ g o . e ann . _
T SAWVY Leii-e (2) HLM ATR3dOLd XOBcley
a h o AVAMDITYM 104X 148 03S0d0Nd




8

Ag endada
ltem
Divider

g




7/10/2017

Tl o
o ;
= G5 ope:

NEW CHALLENGES FACING THE LAW
ENFORCEMENT COMMUNITY IN MAINE WITH
THE LEGALIZATION OF MARIJUANA

HOW CAN | AS THE CHIEF LOOK INTO THE FUTURE TC SEE HOW THE
LEGALIZATION OF MARIJUANA WILL IMPACT THE POLICE
DEPARTMENT HERE IN KENNEBUNKPCRT?Z

Attended seminars on the issue.
Spoken o representatives from the Maine Attorney Generals Office.
Spoken with area chiefs

Contacted pcolice chiefs in Colorado with depariments similar in size
to Kennebunkport.




JOB/TASK ANALYSIS RELATED TO POLICE WORK

Investigative waork

Roadside investigation (operating under the influence)
Hiring and Retention of employees

Management of applications and licensing of businesses
Managemeni of investigative materials

Require Large amourn!s of
manpower/lime

Require technical fraining or assisiance
when dealing with Crass boarder
crimes.

Difterent states have different laws
No clear law currently in place

No established case law dealing with
the new law

No cerlified facilities to do testing of
marijuanc products

Cosis associated wilh testing must be:
paid for by police

INVESTIGATIVE WORK DEALING WITH
VIOLATIONS OF MARIJUANA LAW

7/10/2017



7/10/2017

No actuai testing procedure available or in place to prove
intoxication

if blood sample is to be used. it requires us o obtain a search
warrant to get sample

It takes time for an officer to draft an application for the search
wartant

We must then find a judge to approve and issue the search warnrant

We must mairtain custody of the arestes curing application
frocess

We thern need to find a person certified to drow the sample

fime to write the required reports
Costs associated with testing must be paid for by police

ROADSIDE INVESTIGATIONS
(OPERATING UNDER THE INFLUENCE)

New employees must be evatuaied
clifferently as far as marijuana use in
their past

Civilian employees may be involved
with marijuana use

H | R I N G A N D Employees may have family
members involved with the use and
sale of marijuana
R ETE NTl O N O F Current employees may seek pari
time employment in {he marijuana
irade
EM P LO Y E ES Current employees may leave and
seek full time employment in {he
mariucana trade because of pay.

Lecal housing costs cause
employees {0 leave the areaq




7/10/2017

MANAGEMENT OF APPLICATION AND LICENSING OF BUSINESSES

Reqguires the creation of new infrastruciure o deal with process

Extra staff or increase in current stcff time s needed o process
applications, do inspections and do {ollow ups

Requires training for staif on the process
Iraining on new eguipment used in process
Currenily no certified testing facilities in state

Caosts associated with testing

MANAGEMENT OF INVESTIGATIVE MATERIAL

Current police {acility could not correctly handle the iniake of
investigative maierial from a large scale operatfion

Not enough room
Na climate control {foxic maeld issues)
Not enough securily (large quaniities of precessed matericl or cash)

Staff would reqguire training on proper procedures/handling of
evidentiary material




7/10/2017

Residential investigations may require special proteciive
clothing requirements to protect officers

Toxic mold can be present requining special brealiing
apparatus

High carbon levels from heaters can be an issue
Electrical dangers/fire dangers

Festicides and feriilizers can be a hazard if nol handled
correctly

THC levels in evidence can be a hazard 1o officers

Explosion investigations caused by improper processing
technigues can cause numerous hazards

TRAINING AND EQUIPMENT
ISSUES

Lorge amcunts of cash in businesses
because of bonking issues creale
opportunihes for vanous crimingl aetivily

faos! busingss sales cre o tounsts who are
nexpenenced with the products cousng
stecins on ems services and locat emergency
rooms

Seme police ofgencres are seeking extror
funcing for staling needs as well as overlime
cosls associated with the business

Significant mcrease in homeiess popelaton
of younger adulls who seek o benefit from
the mariuana trade

Blach market industty has boomed
{erganized crime s buying homes tc establish
grows then sell the product “under the
radar)

OTHER UNFORESEEN ISSUES




7/10/2017

WHAT HAVE WE DONE SO FAR 2

Get staft extra training in roadside detection
Develop staff guidelines on marijuana use

Obtain equipment necessary {o conduci safe operations

Stay informead on developing frends from other states

Stay up fo date on current siate of Maine legislation




@)

2017 Annual Town Meeting Warrant, Page 14 \) ( \
I owin ¢ F \} (2 S

APPENDICES

APPENDIX 1

An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 145 {Land Use) of the Code of the Town of Wells
to Retroactively Regulate Medical Marijuana Cultivation and Production Facilities,
to Prohibit Them From All Zones Except the Light Industrial District, and
to Adopt and Amend Definitions Relating to Marijuana

NOTE: Proposed additions to existing Code sections are underlined.
Proposed dejetions of existing Code sections are sressed-aut.
Other sections of the Ordinance are unchanged.

An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 145 {Land Use) of the Code of the Town of Wells

to Retroactively Regulate Medical Martjuana Cultivation and Production Facilities, to Prohibit Them
From all Zones Except the Light Industrial District, and to Adopt and Amend Definitions Relating to
Marljuana.

Part 1: Article Il (Word Usage and Definitions}), § 145-10, titled “Definitions” is hereby amended as
follows:

AGRICULTURE
The business of producing or raising plants and crops, including gardening as a commercial
operation, greenhouses which are not used for raising plants as a wholesale business, tree
farms and nurseries. Agriculture does not include timber harvesting. Agriculture does not
include the prowing, production, testing, sale or processing of marijuana. The extraction of
water for use in plant, crop or livestock Irrigation is not agriculture, but rather an accessory use
to agriculture or animal husbandry.

MANUFACTURING
A business of making goods and articles by hand or machinery. “Manufacturing” shall include
assembling, fabricating, finishing, packaging, or processing. Manufacturing does not include the

Erowing, production, testing, sale or processing of marijuana,

MARLUANA

As defined in State Administrative Rules {10-344 CMR Chapter 122, § 1.17.
MEDICAL MARIJUANA

Marijuana specifically permitted pursuant to the Maine Medical Use of Marijuana Act.
MEDICAL MARUJUANA CAREGIVER

As defined in State Administrative Rules (10-144 CMR Chapter 122} § 1.31, “Primary
Caregiver.”



2017 Annual Town Meeting Warrant, Page 15

MEDICAL MARNUANA CULTIVATION AND PROCESSING FACILITY
A facility used for cultivating, processing, testing, and/or storing of medical marijuana by a
medical marijuana caregiver at a location which is not the medical marifuana caregiver’s
primary year-round residence or their patient’s primary year-round residence.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT FACILITY
A business in which new products or processes are created and studied. Research and
Development Facility does not include the growing, productian, testing, sale or processing of
marijuana,

BUSINESS, WHOLESALE
A business engaged in the sale of merchandise to retailers and not to the ultimate consumer. A

wholesale business does not_include the growing, production, testing, sale or processing of
marijuana.

BUSINESS, RETAIL
A business engaged in the sale, rental or lease of goods to the ultimate consumer for his or her
use or consumption and not for resale. So-called wholesale clubs at which members pay a
yearly fee but are primarily ultimate consumers are considered retail uses. The maximum size
of retail businesses in the General Business District shall not exceed 40,000 square feet. A retsil

business does not include the growing, production, testing, sale or processing of marijuana,

BUSINESS, PERSONAL SERVICE
A business engaged in the provision of personal services, such as but not limited to a doctor,
hairdresser, barber, beautician, masseuse or tanning salon._A personal service business does

not include the growing, production, testing, sale or processing of marijuana.

Part 2: Article V {District Regulations), § 145-28, entitled “Light Industrial District” is hereby amended
as follows:

€. Permitted uses requiring the approval of a site plan. The following uses are permitted upon
obtaining site plan approval and any required permits from the Code Enforcement Officer:

{6) Manufacturing.

{7} Medical Marijuana Cultivation and Production Facility
(8) {4 Motor vehicle rental.

(9] $8%-Municipal facility,

(10} {8} Parking lot, commercial.

{11} {26} Public transportation shelter.

{12) 22} Public utility facility.

(13) &2} Recreation, medium intensity commercial.
(14) {23} Research and development facility.

(15) 4 Recycling facility.

{16} {25} Restaurant, standard.

{17} {36} Restaurant, fast-food.

(18) 21 School, vocational-technical.



2017 Annual Town Meeting Warrant, Page 16

{19) {18} Transmission tower, radio.
{20) {49} Transportation facility.
{21) 20} Truck terminal.

(22) 21} Warehousing.

(23) 22} Self-storage facility.

Part 3: Article VII {Performance Standards), § 145-58.3, entitled “Medical Marijuana Cultivating and
Processing Facility” is hereby enacted as follows:

§ 145-58.3. Medical Marijuana Cultivation and Processing Facility

A Medical marijuana cultivation and processing facilities are allowed subject to the following
performance standards in addition to the requirements of the districts in which the facilities are

located:

{1) Notwithstanding any other provision of the Wells Code, all medical marijuana cultivation
and production facllities must be reviewed by the Wells Planning Board, and not by the Staff
Review Committee or other reviewing authority.

(2} Medical marijuana caregivers and facilities must meet all of the standards and conditions
imposed by the State of Maine issued under the aegis of the Maine Medical Use of Marijuana
Program.

{3) Notwithstanding the Maine Rules Governing the Maine Medical Use of Marijuana Program,
po medical marijuana cultivation and processing facility located in Wells may be located where
any of the lot lines of the lot on which the facility will be located are within 1,000 feet of the lot
line of any preexisting public or private school facility; or any preexisting and licensed child-care
facility.

(4) There shall be opague windows or walls for any building involved in the facility, so that the
interjor is completely screened from lot lines and from any person passing along the street

beoundaries of the lot on which it is located.

{5) All buildings associated with the facility shall be protected by use of fire suppression
sprinkler systems, or other effective fire suppression system that may be approved by the Chief
of the Wells Fire Department. Emergency vehicle access shall be provided on a minimum of
three sides of a building.

{6} The facility shall have a Knox-Box® at the security gate and building or shall provide
emergency response personnel with the necessary information to allow entry in the event of an
emergency at the location,

(7) The facility shall have at least one parking space per 1,000 square feet of gross floor area,
and such additional parking as may be required by the Planning Board,




2017 Annual Town Meeting Warrant, Page 17

{(8)_No facility building shall be allowed to be constructed or occupied within 500 feet of an
existing dwelling unit.

{9).The operator of the facility must provide a security plan to the Chief of Police for the Town
of Wells, wha will provide the Planning Board with a report and recommendations for specific
conditions of approval regarding required security measures to be incorporated. The
requirements for this plan should be coordinated with the reguirements for any security plan
that the State of Maine may require for such a facility. A minimum of a chain link fence, 6 feet
in height is required surrounding the facility. Recordable video surveillance is also required.
Exterior lighting must be sufficient to deter nuisance activity and facilitate surveillance.

{10)_The hours of operation for the facility, including the hours that persons other than staff of
the facility may be present at a cultivation facility, shall be limited. No sales or dispensing of
materials may take place at the facility.

{11) Signs for the facility may not contain any visual depiction of marijuana or marijuana
paraphernalia.

{12) Vegetative buffers may be required by the Planning Board to create a visual screen or

minimize odors,

13) The growing, cultivating, production, processing, testing, and/or storing of medical
marijuana by a medical marijuana caregiver shall be located within a building. 5aid activities
may not be conducted anywhere outside of a building.

Part 4: Retroactive Application of Ordinance Amendments.

Notwithstanding the provisions of 1 M.R.S.A. § 302 and regardless of the date on which these
amendments are approved by voters, these amendments shall govern any and all applications for
permits and approvals required under Chapter 145 {Land Use} of the Code of the Town of Wells that
were received, or, that were pending before any official, officer, committee or board at any time an or
after October 1, 2016. These amendments shall not apply to any agricultural use which received final
approval prior to January 1, 2017 for the growing of medical marijuana located outside of the Light
Industrial District.

Part 5: Effective Date.

This Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption by the Town Meeting.



2017 Annual Town Meeting Warrant, Page 18

APPENDIX 2

An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 145 (Land Use) of the Code of the Town of Wells
to Prohibit Both Retail Marijuana Establishments and
Retail Marijuana Social Clubs Within the Town of Wells

NOTE: Proposed additions to existing Code sections are underlined.
Proposed deletions of existing Code sections are sressed-aut.
QOther sections of the Ordinance are unchanged.

Pursuant ta its authority under 7 M.R.S. § 2447(4), the Town of Wells hereby ordains and enacts “An
Ordinance to Amend Chapter 145 (Land Use) of the Code of the Town of Wells

to Prohibit Both Retail Marijuana Establishments and Retail Marijuana Social Clubs Within the Town
of Wells as follows:

Part 1: Article Il (Word Usage and Definitions), § 145-10, titled “Definitions” is hereby amended as
follows:

RETAIL MARUUANA

Marijuana that is cultivated, manufactured, distributed or sold by a retail marijuana
gstablishment or retail marijuana social club. Retail Marijuana are prohibited in the Town of
Wells, pursuant to the Town’s authority under 7 M.&.S. § 2447{4), as amended.

RETAIL MARIJUANA CULTIVATION FACILITY

A facility or an entity licensed to cultivate prepare and package retail marijuana and to sell

retail marijuana to retail marijuana establishments and retail marijuana social clubs. Retail
Marijuana Cultivation Facilities are prohibited in the Town of Wells, pursuant to the Town's

authority under 7 M.R.S, § 2447(4], as amended.

RETAIL MARIUANA ESTABLISHMENT

Includes retail marijuana stores, retail marljuana cultivation facilities, retail marijuana products
manufacturing facilities, and retail marijuana testing facilities. Retail Marijuana Establishments
are prohibited in the Town of Wells, pursuant to the Town’s authority under 7 M.R.S. § 2447{4),

as amended.




2017 Annual Town Meeting Warrant, Page 19

RETAIL MARUUANA PRODUCT

Concentrated retail marijuana and retail marijuana products that are composed of retail
marijuana and other ingredients and are intended for use or consumption, including, but not
limited to, edible products, cintments and tinctures.

RETAIL MARLUANA PRODUCTS MANUFACTURING FACILITY

A facility or an entity licensed to purchase retail marijuana; manufacture, prepare and package
retail mariiuana products; and sell retail marijuana and retail marijuana products only to other
retall marijuana products manufacturing facilities, retail marijuana stores and retail marijuana
sacial clubs. Retail Marijuana Products Manufacturing Facilities are prohibited in the Town of
Wells, pursuant to the Town’s authority under 7 M.R.S. § 2447(4), as amended.

RETAIL MARLJUANA SOCIAL CLUB

A facility or an entity licensed to sell retail marijuana and retail marijuana products to
consumers for consumption on the licensed premises. Retail Marijuana Social Clubs are
prohibited in the Town of Wells, pursuant to the Town's authority under 7 M.R.S. § 2447(4]), as

amended.

RETAIL MARIJUANA STORE

A facility or an entity licensed to purchase retail marijuana from a retail marijuana cultivation
facility and to purchase retail marijuana products from a retail marijuana products

manufacturing facility and to sell retail marijuana and retail marijuana products to consumers.
Retail Marijuana Stores are prohibited in the Town of Wells, pursuant to the Town's authority

under 7 M.R.S. § 2447{4), as amended.

RETAIL MARIJUANA TESTING FACILITY

A facility or an entity licensed and certified to analyze and certify the safety and potency of
retail marijuana and retall marijusna preducts. Retail Marijuana Testing Facilities are prohibited
in the Town of Wells,_pursuant to the Town’s authority under 7 M.R.S. § 2447(4), as amended.

Part 2: Effective Date.

This Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption by the Town Meeting.



[Note: This model ordinance was initially prepared by the Law firm of Jensen, Baird, Gardner
and Henry, and with their pernvission, was miodified for use as a model ovdinance. MMA Legul Services

provides this moratorinm as an example only. Local counsel should be consulted first before enacting a
moratorium. )

MUNICIPALITY OF MORATORIUM
ORDINANCE ON RETAIL MARIJUANA ESTABLISHMENTS AND RETAIL
MARIJUNA STORES AND RETAIL MARIJUANA SOCIAL CLUBS

WHEREAS, the “Marijuana Legalization Act,” has become law in Maine, codified in the
Maine Revised Statutes in Title 7, chapter 417; and

WHEREAS, the Marijuana Legalization Act (hereinafter, “Act”) authorizes
municipalities to regulate the number of retail marijuana stores and the location and operation of
retail marijuana social clubs and retail marijuana establishments, including retail marijuana
stores, retail marijuana cultivation facilities, retail marijuana products manufacturing facilities
and retail marijuana testing facilities, as those terms are defined in the Act, as well as providing
the option to prohibit the operation of retail marijuana social clubs and retail marijuana
establishments, including stores, cultivation facilities, manufacturing facilities and testing
facilities, within their jurisdiction; and

WHEREAS, the proposed Act will not limit the privileges or rights afforded by the
Maine Medical Use of Marijuana Act (22 M.R.S.A. §§ 2421 — 2430-B) to qualifying patients,
primary caregivers, or registered dispensaries, including cultivation facilities associated with any
of those classifications; and

WHEREAS, the Municipality’s current ordinances do not include any regulations related
to retail marijuana stores, retail marijuana establishments or retail marijuana social clubs under
the proposed new Act; and

WHEREAS, the unregulated location and operation of retail marijuana establishments,
retail marijuana stores and retail marijuana social clubs within the Municipality
of raises legitimate and substantial questions about the impact of such
establishments, stores and social clubs on the Municipality, including questions about the
compatibility of retail marijuana establishments, retail marijuana stores and retail marijuana
social clubs with existing uses and development in residential, commercial and industrial zoning
districts; the potential adverse health and safety effects of retail marijuana establishments, retail
marijuana stores and retail marijuana social clubs on the community if not properly regulated;
the possibility of illicit sale and use of marijuana and marijuana products to minors and misuse of
marijuana and marijuana products by those who would abuse the uses authorized under the Act:
potential criminal activity associated with the cultivation, manufacturing, sale and use of
marijuana and marijuana products for non-medicinal purposes and the potential increased burden
on the Municipality’s police and fire departments; and the adequacy of the Municipality’s streets
and infrastructure to accommodate the additional traffic and/or population that may result from
the presence of retail marijuana establishments, retail marijuana stores or retail marijuana social
clubs; and




WHEREAS, the possible effect of the location and operation of retail marijuana
establishments and/or retail marijuana stores and/or retail marijuana social clubs within the
Municipality has potentially serious implications for the health, safety and welfare of the
Municipality and its residents; and

WHEREAS, the Municipality needs time to review the Act and to review its own
ordinances to determine the implications of future proposed retail marijuana establishments
and/or retail marijuana stores and/or retail marijuana social clubs to develop reasonable
ordinances governing the location and operations of such establishments and stores and social
clubs to address the concerns cited above; and

WHEREAS, the Municipality’s current ordinances are insufficient to prevent serious
public harm that could be caused by the unregulated development of retail marijuana
establishments and retail marijuana stores and retail marijuana social clubs and other uses
authorized by the Act, thereby necessitating a moratorium; and

WHEREAS, the board of municipal officers, the administration and the planning board,
with the professional advice and assistance of the police department, shall study the
Municipality’s current ordinances to determine the land use and other regulatory implications of
retail marijuana establishments and retail marijuana stores and retail marijuana social clubs and
consider what locations, if any, and conditions of approval, if any, might be appropriate for such
uses; and

WHEREAS, a moratorium is necessary to prevent an overburdening of public facilities
that is reasonably foreseeable as the result of retail marijuana establishments and retail marijuana
stores and retail marijuana social clubs and other uses authorized by the Act, being located in the
Municipality; and

WHEREAS, it is anticipated that such a study, review, and development of recommended
ordinance changes will take at least one hundred and eighty (180) days from the date the
Municipality enacts this Moratorium Ordinance on retail marijuana establishments and retail
marijuana stores and retail marijuana social Clubs;

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the legislative body of the Municipality of

, that the following Moratorium Ordinance on retail
marijuana establishments and retail marijuana stores and retail marijuana social clubs be, and
hereby is, enacted, and, in furtherance thereof, the legislative body does hereby declare a
moratorium on the location, operation or licensing of any retail marijuana social clubs and any
retail marijuana establishments, including retail marijuana stores, retail marijuana cultivation
facilities, retail marijuana products manufacturing facilities and retail marijuana testing facilities,
within the City.

This Moratorium Ordinance shall take effect, once enacted by the legislative body, but
shall be applicable as of as expressly provided below. The
moratorium shall remain in effect for one hundred and eighty (180) days from the date of
applicability of this Ordinance, unless extended, repealed, or modified by the legislative body,

[ [ ]



for the express purpose of drafting an amendment or amendments to the Municipality’s current
ordinances to protect the public from health and safety risks including, but not limited to,
compatibility of retail marijuana establishments, retail marijuana stores and retail marijuana
social clubs with existing and permitted uses in residential, commercial and industrial zoning
districts; the correlation of retail marijuana establishments, retail marijuana stores and retail
marijuana social clubs with medical marijuana cultivation facilities and dispensaries, all as
defined in the Act; the potential adverse health and safety effects of retail marijuana
establishments and retail marijuana stores and retail marijuana social clubs on the community if
not properly regulated; the possibility of illicit sale and use of marijuana and marijuana products
to minors and misuse of marijuana and marijuana products by those who would abuse the uses
authorized under the new law; criminal activity associated with the cultivation, manufacturing,
sale and use of marijuana and marijuana products for non-medicinal purposes and the potential
increased burden on the public safety agencies serving the Municipality in responding to the
same; and the adequacy of the Municipality’s infrastructure to accommodate the additional
traffic and/or population that may result from the presence of retail marijuana establishments or
retail marijuana stores or retail marijuana social clubs in the Municipality.

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall apply to retail marijuana stores
and retail marijuana social clubs and retail marijuana establishments, including retail marijuana
stores, retail marijuana cultivation facilities, retail marijuana products manufacturing facilities
and retail marijuana testing facilities, as those terms are defined by the Act, codified at 7
M.R.S.A. §§ 2442 (36), (38), (39), (40) (41), that may be proposed to be located within the
Municipality on or after the (date) applicability date of this
Ordinance; and

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that notwithstanding the provisions of 1 M.R.S.A. § 302
or any other law to the contrary, this Ordinance, when enacted, shall govern any proposed retail
marijuana establishments or retail marijuana stores or retail marijuana social clubs for which an
application for a building permit, Certificate of Occupancy, site plan or any other required
approval has not been submitted to and granted final approval by the Code Enforcement Officer,
Planning Board or other Municipal official or board prior to the applicability date of this
Ordinance; and

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that no person or organization shall develop or operate a
retail marijuana establishment or retail marijuana store or retail marijuana social club within the
Municipality on or after the effective date of this Ordinance without complying with whatever
ordinance amendment or amendments the legislative body may enact as a result of this
Moratorium Ordinance; and

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that during the time this Moratorium Ordinance is in
effect, no officer, official, employee, office, administrative board or agency of the Municipality
shall accept, process, approve, deny, or in any other way act upon any application for a license,
building permit or any other type of land use approval or permit and/or any other permits or
licenses related to a retail marijuana establishment or retail marijuana stores or retail marijuana
social club; and



BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that those provisions of the Municipality’s ordinances
that are inconsistent or conflicting with the provisions of this Ordinance, are hereby repealed to
the extent that they are applicable for the duration of the moratorium hereby ordained, and as it
may be extended as permitted by law, but not otherwise; and

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that if retail marijuana establishments or retail marijuana
stores or retail marijuana social clubs are established in violation of this Ordinance, each day of
any continuing violation shall constitute a separate violation of this Ordinance, and the
Municipality shall be entitled to all rights available to it in law and equity, including, but not
limited to, fines and penalties, injunctive relief, and its reasonable attorney’s fees and costs in
prosecuting any such violations; and

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that should any section or provision of this Ordinance be
declared by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such a declaration shall not
invalidate any other section or provision.



Ordinance Prohibiting Retail Marijuana Establishments and Retail Marijuana Social Clubs

in the Municipality of

Section 1. Authority.

This ordinance is enacted pursuant to the Marijuana Legalization Act, 7 M.R.S.A. ¢. 417; and Municipal
Home Rule Authority, Me. Const., art. VIII, pt. 2; and 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3001.

Section 2, Definitions.

For purposes of this ordinance, retail marijuana establishments, including retail marijuana stores, retail
marijuana cultivation facilities, retail marijuana products manufacturing facilities and retail marijuana
testing facilities, and retail marijuana social clubs are defined as set forth in 7 M.R.S.A. § 2442.

Section 3. Prohibition on Retail Marijuana Establishments and Retail Marijuana Social Clubs.

Retail marijuana establishments, including retail marijuana stores, retail marijuana cultivation facilities,
retail marijuana products manufacturing facilities, and retail marijuana testing facilities, and retail

marijuana social clubs, are expressly prohibited in this municipality.

No person or organization shall develop or operate a business that engages in retail or wholesale sales
of a retail marijuana product, as defined by 7 M.R.S.A. § 2442,

Nothing in this ordinance is intended to prohibit any lawful use, possession or conduct pursuant to the
Maine Medical Use of Marijuana Act, 22 M.R.S.A. ¢. 558-C.

Section 4. Effective date; duration.

This ordinance shall take effect inmediately upon enactment by the municipal legislative body unless
otherwise provided and shall remain in effect until it is amended or repealed.

Section 5. Penalties.

This ordinance shall be enforced by the municipal officers or their designee. Violations of this ordinance
shall be subject to the enforcement and penalty provisions of 30-A M.R.S.A. § 4452.



<%
Agenda

ltem
Divider

g



& [

Consulting
€ETSs
and Scdentists

June 19, 2017 Project 171.06082.001

Mr, Werner Gilliam, CFM

Director of Planning & Development
6 Elm Street

PO Box 566

Kennebunkport, ME 04046

Sent via Email: weilliamedkennebunkportme. sov

RE:  Appeal Assistance for 2017 Preliminary Flood Insurance Rate Maps
Town of Kennebunkport, Maine

Dear Mr, Gilliam,

Ransom Consulting, Inc. (Ransom) is pleased to present the following proposal to assist the Town of
Kennebunkport (Town) in an appeal of the recently issued 2017 Federal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA) Preliminary Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM). Ransom previously performed a review of the
draft preliminary FIRM (work maps) that FEMA provided to the Town in November 2016. Our review
of the work maps is described in a memorandum provide to the town March 2, 2017, More recently
Ransoin has received the preliminary FIRM and engineering data deliverable that FEMA issued April 14,
2017. We have now had a chance to look at the 2017 preliminary maps and engineering data for York
County, and are providing this proposal to offer our assistance in appealing these latest preliminary
FIRMs.

Ransom has previously prepared an appeal against the 2013 FIRM that revises the FIRM in the area of
town along the Kennebunk River. Ransom also investigated the feasibility of appealing the 2013 FIRM
for the area near Goose Rocks Beach, but found that methods using the one-dimensional Stimulating
Waves Near Shore (SWAN 1-D) model to revise the wave setup were not likely to result in much
improvement over the 2013 FIRM. However, the preliminary 2017 FIRM has been updated and revised
from what FEMA provided in 2013. With the new revision we expect appealing zones in the Goose
Rocks Beach area will now be feasible. Furthermore, we believe the approach described in this proposal
has potential to improve the analysis and mapping along the Kennbunk River beyond our previous
approach, and has potential to improve the mapping in other areas of the Town where there are many
properties that would be adversely impacted if the 2017 maps are not revised.

Ransom’s staff have been closely following FEMA map modemization efforts in southern Maine for
nearly a decade and have an in-depth understanding of the potential scientific and/or technical
deficiencies that may be present in FEMA's coastal flood analysis. Through FEMA’s appeal process, we
have successfully helped a number of municipal and private clients in Maine in obtaining flood maps with
more accurate representations of the 1% annual chance flood hazard.

400 Commercial Street, Suite 404, Portland, Maine 04101, Tel (207) 772-2891, Fax (207) 772-3248
Pease International Tradapont, 112 Corparate Drive, Portsmouth, New Hampshire 03801, Tel (GO3) 436-1490
12 Kent Way, Suite 100. Byfield, Massachuselts 01922-1221, Tel (978} 465-1822

60 Valley Street, Building &, Suile 106, Pravidence, Rhode Island 02909, Tel (401) 433-2160

2127 Hamiltan Avenue, Hamilton, New Jersey 08619, Tel (603) 584-0090

www.ransomenv.com



Mr. Wemer Gilliam, Director of Planning & Development
Town of Kennebunkport, Maine

Perhaps the most significant deficiency in FEMA'’s coastal flood hazard analysis for Southern Maine is
the use of simplified and overly-conservative methods to compute the components of the Total Water
Level (TWL). The TWL is a primary input to calculations that ultimately determine the Base Flood
Elevation (BFE), which is the elevation shown on the FIRM to represent the 1% annual chance flood
hazard. Where the TWL is incorrect, it can lead to incorrect BFEs and incorrect delineation of the 1%
annual chance Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA), or more commonly known as “the 100-year flood
zone.” The TWL is the combination of two terms: 1) the Still Water Level (SWL), which is the mean
water level that results from combination of astronomical tides and storm surge; and 2) The wave setup,
which is an additional elevation of the mean water level due to shoreward momentum flux that is
associated with breaking waves'. FEMA has computed these terms separately using statistical analyses of
historic tide gauge data to determine the SWL and a simplified version of the Direct Integration Method
(DIM) to calculate the wave setup. In reality, the processes that cause storm surge and wave setup
interact dynamically and are not physically separable. The wave setup directly contributes to the mean
water level, and the mean water level, in-turn, influences the wave conditions. This makes FEMA’s
approach, which separates the wave setup from the storm surge, conceptually confusing and theoreticaily
questionable. Furthermore, FEMA’s simplified approach does not account for the high degree of spatial
variability of storm surge and wave setup because the tide gauge stations are sparsely distributed. And
the DIM method does not consider nearshore wave transformation effects, such as wave refraction and
diffraction.

FEMA has provided a guidance document, “Criteria for Appeals of Flood Insurance Rale Maps”, dated
November 30, 201 1, which describes acceptable bases for appeals of preliminary FIRMs. Based on our
preliminary review of FEMA's coastal engineering data for both York and Cumberland Counties, we
believe the FIRM can be appealed on the basis that the SFHA and BFEs are scientifically incorrect
because inaccurate methods were used to determine the TWL. However, according to the guidance,
FEMA does not consider it sufficient criteria for appeal lo simply point out the scientific deficiencies in
their analysis. To appeal on this basis, FEMA requires the appellate also provide revised analyses and
mapping based on an alternative methodology, and an explanation of why the alternative methodology is
more correct.

On May 17, 2017, Ransom senl a memo to a number of Towns in York and Cumberland Counties, which
points out some of the common issues with the 2017 preliminary FIRMs in both counties, and proposes a
strategy to develop appeals. This memo describes a methodology that would leverage the recently
completed North Atlantic Coast Comprehensive Study (NACCS) performed by the U.S Army Corps of
Engineers (USACE) to provide more accurate TWL values. We believe an appeal following these
methods would be defensible, as it uses methods that were largely developed by FEMA and have been

! According to FEMA’s 2005 “Final Draft Guidelines for Coastal Flood Hazard Analysis and Mapping for the
Pacific Coast of the United States™, the combination of the SWL and static wave setup is more appropriately termed
the STatic Water Level (STWL), while the term TWL is defined to include the SWI, wave setup, and wave run-up.
However, in FEMA Region I, FEMA has not included the wave run-up in the water level they have labeled as the
TWL in their engineering data submission. To avoid confusion, we are using the term TWL to mean the same as
FEMA has implied in Region 1. That is, the TWL is defined as the sum of the SWL and the wave setup, but not
including any wave run-up.

Ransom Project 171.06082.001 Page 2
Kennebunkport-2017-FEMA_proposal.docx June 19, 2017



Mr. Werner Gilliam, Director of Planning & Development
Town of Kennebunkport, Maine

applied by FEMA in coastal flood hazard analyses in many other regions of the Atlantic and Gulf of
Mexico Coast. Because these methods are regional in nature, they could potentiaily benefit the coastal
communities in Southern Maine by correcting overly-conservative estimates of the TWL throughout the
region.

We believe a coordinated appeal effort between multiple communities in York and Cumberland counties
would be the best approach to facilitate a broad correction in TWL values, based on state-of-the-practice
modeling methodologies. This makes sense from a modeling perspective for a number of reasons:
increased computational efficiency, reduced model development efforts, and consistency in modeling
approach and technical documentation across multiple communities. It also makes sense from a political
perspective, as it would demonstrate to FEMA that York and Cumberland County communities are
interested in collectively improving the coastal flood hazard mapping with a consistent regional approach.

Although there are other possible approaches that could successfully improve the accuracy of the TWL?,
we recommend this approach for a number of reasons:

1. Coupled two-dimensional (2-D) Hydrodynamic-Wave modeling is the-state-of-the-
practice for coastal flood hazard analyses across the nation. Using this technique, we can
leverage the effort of the USACE recent NACCS.

2. It is the only method we are aware of that doesn't require the overly-conservative
assumption that open coast wave setup fully propagates into estuaries and other sheltered
areas.

kX Model results will provide TWL values everywhere, not just at the location of specific

wave fransects. This reduces the effort required for wave transect-based calculations that
would be required at new transect locations, and is useful for non-FEMA mapping that
can take full advantage of truly two-dimensional flood hazard data.

4, In addition to providing TWL values, the modeling results also provide incident
nearshore wave condition data that are required for transect-based analyses and mapping.

5. If enough communities share the cost of a joint effort, the per-community cost is
comparable to other less precise methods that would broadly revise the TWL values.

6. Although it is not a requirement for FEMA coastal flood mapping, the model will provide
results for the full range of coastal flood probabilities and could serve as a too! for
community level-planning and resiliency design. For example, 10-year, 50-year, and
500-year TWL values will be available from the model results, in addition to the 100-
year value. The statistical methods can also be extended to include hazard assessments

? For example, applying SWAN-1D on a transect-by-transect basis would be an improvement over FEMA's DIM
calculation for wave setup.

Ransom Project 171.06082.001 Page 3
Kennebunkport-2017-FEMA _proposal.docx June 19, 2017



Mr. Werner Gilliam, Director of Planning & Development
Town of Kennebunkport, Maine

for future conditions that might consider sea level rise and/or future changes in the
frequency of extreme storm events.

The following scope of work outlines a phased approach to appealing the 2017 preliminary FIRMs.
Phase | involves the modeling and analysis required to develop revised TWL and incident wave
conditions for all of York and Cumberland Counties. We propose Phase I as a single joint effort that
would provide the basis for appeal in each of these Southern Maine coastal communities. Phase Il is
community-specific and assumes we will use Phase [ results to perform revised site-specific wave
transect-based calculations and re-mapping in particular areas of concern, which would be required to
meet the criteria for an appeal. Phase II also involves preparation of community-specific appeal
documentation, and any follow-up work required if FEMA makes requests for more information
following the appeal submittal,

Please be aware that Ransom is proposing a similar scope of work for the following communities: Town
of Harpswell, City of South Portland, Town of Scarborough, Town of Old Orchard Beach, City of Saco,
Town of Kennebunkport, Town of Wells, and Town of Kittery. It is our hope that each of these
communities choose to participate in this effort, as this will dramatically reduce the per-community cost
associated with the Phase I effort. We also believe that if more communities participate it will strengthen
each individual community’s argument and specific appeal under Phase II for more accurate FIRMs.

SCOPE OF WORK

Phase [ - Coupled Hydrodynamic-Wave Modeling to Revise the 1% Annual Chance Still Water Level,
Wave Setup, and Associated Nearshore Wave Conditions for Southern Maine Coastal Communities

Task | - Collect, Compile, and Develop Topographic-Bathymetric Digital Elevation Data

Ransom is aware of a significant amount of additional and available topographic and bathymetric
data that are more recent than the data used by FEMA in their analysis for the 2017 preliminary
maps. These data include terrestrial Lidar collected by the U.S. Geographic Survey (USGS), and
topo-bathymetric Lidar and hydrographic surveys by the USACE and the National Oceanic and
Atmospheric Administration, National Ocean Service (NOAA NOS). Ransom will also obtain
recent available land cover data, which will be required to provide frictional characterization to
the storm surge and wave models used in subsequent tasks. Ransom will transform all data to
consistent horizontal and vertical datums, and develop a topographic-bathymetric digital
elevation model for the region. Upon completion of this task, Ransom will provide a
memorandum describing the data sources and digital elevation model for the area, and also
provide the data in digital format for submission to FEMA with appeals.

Ransom Project 171.06082.001 Page 4
Kennebunkport-2017-FEMA_proposal.docx June 19, 2017



Mr. Wemer Gilliam, Director of Planning & Development
Town of Kennebunkport, Maine

Task 2 — Develop Advanced Circulation Model (ADCIRC)+SWAN Model for Southern Maine
Coastal Communities’

Ransom will use the data collected in Task | above to develop a dynamice, “tightly coupled” 2-D
ADCIRC+SWAN model to simulate hydrodynamics and wave conditions. Model development
requires the following sub tasks:

Task 2.1 — Develop unstructured finite-element model grid: This subtask involves
drawing lines and polygons to specify the resolution and placement of nodal points at
which the model calculations are made. It also involves interpolating merged elevation
(topography and bathymetry) data to the model grid, and grid editing to ensure high
quality and stable model results.

Task 2.2 - Configure boundary conditions: This subtask involves setting model nodal
attribute data (e.g. bottom friction factors, eddy viscosity parameters, wind drag factors,
etc.), defining river inflow and tidal elevation boundaries and associated forcing
functions, and domain wide forcing including spatially and temporally variable wind and
atmospheric pressure fields. Boundary conditions will be primarily extracted from results
of NACCS model simulations.

Task 2.3 - Model sensitivity/stability testing: Ransom will run the model through a range
of conditions to understand and improve model behavior and determine a set of model
parameters that can be expected to produce stable model simulations with physically
reasonable results. Stability testing is an iterative process where the model is stressed to
point of instability (i.e., the model “crashes™) in order to identify sensitive areas in the
model domain and/or boundary condition specification. Adjustments are made to the
model grid and boundary conditions and stability testing simulations are run again until a
stable and physically reasonable result is achieved. Sensitivity testing involves running
multiple model simulations, while varying some model parameters {e.g. friction and eddy
viscosity parameters) within a reasonable range of values to understand the degree of
uncertainty in model results that can be expected, due to uncertainty in the model input
parameters.

Task 2.4 — Model Validation: Model validation involves simulating a number of historic
events and comparing the model results to observations to quantify the model error. The
model will be validated for normal tidal conditions by comparing model simulated water
levels to tide gauge observations within the model domain. The model will also be
validated against storm conditions by comparing model results to high water mark
observations and tide gauge observation during the February 7, 1978 blizzard, and other
significant storm events for which observations are available.

3 For the purposes of this proposal, we describe developing a single model for all of York and Cumberland Counties.
However, depending on community participation, Ransom may not model the entire area of both counties, and/or
may choose to divide the area into a number of smaller overlapping models.

Ransom Project 171.06082.001 Page 5
Kennebunkport-2017-FEMA_proposal.docx June 19, 2017



Mr. Werner Gilliam, Director of Planning & Development
Town of Kennebunkport, Maine

Tusk 3 — Determine the 1% annual chance TWL and associated wave conditions

Ransom will use the ADCIRC+SWAN model to simulate a sub-set of storms from the NACCS
storm set and quantify the coastal storm hazard in terms of water level and wave exceedance
probability, including determination of the 1% annual chance TWL and associated wave
conditions.

Task 3.1 — Model Production Simulations: This subtask includes setting up the input
files and carrying out a large number of mode! simulations to determine the maximum
walter levels and wave conditions for a set of storms that are representative of coastal
storm climatology of Southern Maine. The production simulations will be based on a
sub-set of historic extra-tropical storms and synthetic tropical storms (or hurricanes)
taken from the NACCS storm set.

Task 3.2 - Statistical Analysis: Following the statistical methodology developed for
NACCS, we will utilize the results of the production simulations to develop spatially
variable water level and wave height exceedance curves for the entire model domain.
Following the NACCS methods, the statistical analysis will combine Extreme Value
Analysis (EVA) for the extra-tropical storms with the Joint Probability Method with
Optimal Sampling (JPM-OS) for tropical storms, and incorporate an evaluation of
epistemic uncertainty in order to quantify the full range of coastal flood probability,
including the 1% annual chance TWL and associated wave conditions required for
FEMA appeals.

Task 4 — Phase I Reporting and Documentation of the Southern Maine Hydrodynamic-Wave
Model and 1% annual chance TWL and Wave Conditions.

Ransom proposes to develop a single technical report and data submission describing the entire
Phase I effort. Copies of the technical report and data submission will be provided to each
participating community and will be incorporated by reference and provided to FEMA with
appeal report submissions. Using a single report to describe the efforts for all participating
communities will simplify the community appeal reporting requirements and also reduce the
burden on FEMA for reviewing community-submitted technical data.

Task 4.1 ~ Prepare Report: Ransom will draft a technical report describing the model
development, validation, production simulations, statistical analysis, and resulting 1%
annual chance water levels and wave conditions.

Task 4.2 - Prepare digital data submission: Ransom will prepare a digital archive of all
computer files developed during this effort.

Ransom Project 171.06082.001 Page 6
Kennebunkport-2017-FEMA_proposal.docx June 19, 2017



Mr. Werner Gilliam, Director of Planning & Development
Town of Kennebunkport, Maine

Phase II — Transect-Based Calculations, Revised Mapping, and Appeal Preparation for the Town of
Kennebunkport

The BFE is the elevation shown on the FIRM that represents the 1% annual chance flood hazard. In order
to appeal the preliminary FIRM, a community must compute revised BFEs and revise the FIRM, using
methods that are more scientifically and/or technically correct than the methods applied by FEMA.
Following FEMA’s Guidelines and Specifications, the coastal BFE must be determined by following a
series of standard engineering calculations made at precise locations along the shoreline using site-
specific shore perpendicular elevation profiles called wave transects. The BFE, which may vary along a
wave transect, is determined only at wave transect locations. FEMA’s engineers exercise their
Jjudgement in choosing where to evaluate wave transects, and how to determine the BFE and SFHA
boundaries between wave transects. The idea is that cach wave transect should be representative of a
segment of the shoreline and that enough transects should be evaluated to reasonably represent the entire
shoreline.

For coastal analyses the BFE is determined by adding a number of different water level components
together; depending on the specific wave transect elevation profile, incorporating slope, geology, and
presence of structures, and the results of the calculations, different combinations of components may be
used. In addition to the SWL, wave setup, and TWL described above, these components are:

1. Wave run-up - Wave run-up is the vertical extent of the rush of water that extends inland
when waves come ashore. Various methods are used to calculate the wave run-up
depending on the shoreline type and slope. The vertical height of the wave run-up is
added to the SWL (without the wave setup) to determine the BFE in cases where run-up
is the dominant hazard. This is typically the case on steep shorelines with wave
exposure. If the run-up elevation is more than 3 feet above the top of the structure or
steep shoreline crest the BFE is set to 3 above the crest elevation. If the run-up is higher
than the crest of a structure crest or crest of a steep slope, FEMA may delineate a wave
overtopping zone or wave splash zone that extends landward.

2, Controlling Wave Height - The controlling wave height is the wave height associated
with the highest 1% of waves. The controlling wave height is determined by the Wave
Height Analysis for Flood Insurance Studies (WHAFIS) model. 70% of the Coatrolling
wave height is added to the TWL to determine the BFE in locations where the overland
wave crest envelope dominates the hazard. This is typically the case on flatter shorelines.

For each transect, wave run-up and the controlling wave must both be evaluated, and the more hazardous
condition is used to define the BFE. This analysis is further complicated where coastal structures are
present, or where the shoreline is subject to erosion during the [% annual chance event. In these cases,
analyses must be carried out for both intact and failed {or eroded) profiles and the BFE is determined
based on the more hazardous results.

Because the SWL, wave setup, and TWL are primary inputs to the wave transect based calculation, the
results of Phase I will provide a basis for appeal of any or all transects and re-mapping of any portion or
the entire SFHA within the community. While a complete revision of the SFHA throughout the

Ransom Project 171.06082.001 Page 7
Kennebunkport-2017-FEMA_proposal.docx June 19, 2017



Mr. Wemer Gilliam, Director of Planning & Development
Town of Kennebunkport, Maine

community might ultimately be desirable, it is not likely necessary to meet FEMA’s criteria for appeals.
Because there will be limited time to prepare appeals for communities in York and Cumberland counties,
and because it will take a large effort to re-calculate and re-map all transects in participating
municipalities, we are recommending that each community consider revising only a limited number of
priority transects at first. After evaluating an initial set of transects, we will revise the mapping for those
transects and prepare a submission that meets FEMA’s criteria for an appeal.

With this proposed approach, our goal is to assist several communities in submitting appeals that meet
FEMA's criteria, so that FEMA must consider them all. With many appeal submissions, FEMA will
likely be obliged to decide on the scientific and technical merit of the Phase I modeling and broadly
revised TWL and nearshore wave data. We believe that if more communities submit appeals, based on
the more advanced Phase I methodology, thus presenting an improved technical approach that is
consistent across multiple communities, it is more likely that FEMA will more broadly accept the revised
methodology and appeals.

After initial appeal submissions are prepared for each participating communities, time permitting, we
could then evaluate and re-map additional wave transects and add them to the appeal submission. If there
is not sufficient time within the 90-day appeal period to revise additional transects, it is possible that
FEMA may allow additional information to be submitted after the end of the appeal period, while FEMA
reviews the initial appeal. If there is not sufficient opportunity to revise remaining transects at that point,
there is still opportunity to do so through the Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) process, as soon as the new
maps become effective.

We propose the following Phase 11 tasks for the Town of Kennebunkport:

Task 5 — Update of Appeal Against 2013 Preliminary FIRM and Transect-Based Wave Analysis
and Mapping for Seven Priority Transects

Ransom has previously prepared an appeal against 2013 preliminary FIRMS. This appeal
involved using a Hydrologic Engineering Center’s River Analysis System (HEC-RAS) model of
Kennebunk River to evaluate the propagation of wave setup up the River, and a Steady State
Spectral Wave (STWAVE) model to determine the controlling wave height in the River. Ransom
will update this appeal using the TWL data and comresponding wave conditions from Phase [ to
re-calculate the BFE and remap the FIRM along the Kennebunk River in Kennebunkport.
Ransom will also re-evaluate FEMA transects YK-103 thru YK-109 at Goose Rocks Beach.
Based on our review of FEMA's 2017 engineering data and our understanding of the typical
over-conservatism in FEMA’s methods, FEMA's 2017 analysis at these transects would
incorrectly place a large number of buildings within the SFHA and unnecessarily increase the
BFE for building that are currently in the SFHA. Ransom will re-evaluate these transects using
the TWL data and corresponding wave conditions from Phase 1. This includes performing the
controlling wave height analysis using the WHAFIS model, as well as wave run-up analyses to
determine the Base Flood Elevation along these transects. With the 2-D TWL generated in Phase
I, we will be able to avoid making the over-conservative assumption that wave setup calculated
for the open coast fully applies in the estuaries behind Goose Rocks Beach. We expect this will
lead to a significant improvement in the FIRM for that neighborhood.

Ransom Project 171.06082.001 Page 8
Kennebunkport-2017-FEMA _proposal.docx June 19, 2017



Mr. Werner Gilliam, Director of Planning & Development
Town of Kennebunkport, Maine

Where appropriate, Ransom’s analysis will also incorporate assumed erosion profiles or structure
failures as required by FEMA'’s guidelines and specifications. Where available, Ransom will use
data from the Maine Geological Survey or other sources to determine custom eroded beach
profiles based on observed beach profiles. Upon completion of this task, Ransom will provide a
draft map showing proposed revisions to the flood zones in this area.

Task 6 — Appeal Documentation Preparation and Submission

For this task, Ransom will solicit and incorporate feedback from the Town on the draft analyses
and mapping from Task 5 and finalize the modeling, analysis, and mapping. We will then
compile the necessary documentation to meet FEMA’s requirements for a formal appeal and
prepare a final appeal report with digital data submission for the Town to submit directly to
FEMA during the 90-day statutory appeal period.

Task 7- Transect-Based Wave Analysis for Remaining FEMA Wave Transects

This optional task, or a portion thereof, may be completed within the 90-day appeal period if time
permits. This task may also be completed following the end of the 90-day appeal period if
FEMA agrees to consider additional transect analyses and remapping at that time. Alternatively,
if not completed through the appeal process, this task may be completed using the LOMR process
after the appeal is resolved and new maps are made effective.

Ransom will perform transect-based wave analysis and mapping, described under Task 5, for the
remainder of the FEMA transects in the Town. Upon completion of this task, Ransom will
provide a draft map showing the proposed revisions to the flood zones in the Town.

Task 8 — Appeal Follow-Up & Response to Subsequent FEMA Requests

Following appeal submission, Ransom will respond to requests for additional information that
FEMA may have, until FEMA issues an appeal resolution. In our prior experience, FEMA
typically will make at least one, and as many as three (or more), requests for additional
information, and may require some revision to the appeal submission documentation, prior to
accepting the final appeal. Please note that it is possible, but unlikely, that FEMA will outright
deny an appeal. If that happens, FEMA’s Scientific Resolution Panel (SRP) process is available
for communities to request an independent review and decision regarding the appeal submission.
[f FEMA denies the appeal and the Town decides to request an SRP review, Ransom will provide
technical support for the Town through the SRP process, on an as-needed basis.

PROJECT COST & SCHEDULE

We propose to complete the above scope of work on a time-and-materials basis, according to the fee
schedule in Attachment A. The total cost for developing an overall coupled Hydrodynamic-Wave Model
for communities in York and Cumberland Counties under Phase | is estimated at $210,000. A breakdown
of the Phase | estimated costs by tasks is listed in the Table below. These are the total costs for all

Ransom Project 171.06082.001 Page 9
Kennebunkport-2017-FEMA_proposal.docx June 19, 2017



Mr. Werner Gilliam, Director of Planning & Development
Town of Kennebunkport, Maine

participating communities assuming modeling is performed for all communities in York and Cumberland
Counties. Ransom will divide the billing for Phase I tasks equally between all participating communities.
Depending on the number of participating communities, the Phase I cost per community may be less. For
example, if four communities participate in the effort, the estimated Phase I cost per community would be

approximately $52,500; and if all eight communities participate, the estimated Phase I cost per
community would be approximately $26,250.

To be fair to all communities that choose to participate in the effort, Ransom has decided that we will
only use Phase [ modei results to support appeals in communities that share in the cost for Phase I If
additional communities, other than the eight listed above, decide they would like to participate, and share
in the cost of Phase I, Ransom will allow those communities to join the effort, but with lower priority in
completion of the Phase 11 effort.

Phase II costs for the Town of Kennebunkport are broken down by task in the Table below. The total
estimated Phase II cost is $58,000 assuming the Town chooses the optional Task 7 for re-calculating all
FEMA wave transects, and re-mapping the SFHA for the entire town, part of which may have to be done
after the appeal submission. Estimated Phase II costs required for appeal submission, including Task 5
and Task 6 only, are $33,000. The Town may choose to approve Phase [ and only the Phase Il tasks
required for appeal submission at this time, and then later decide to approve Task 7 or a portion thereof, if
the Town would prefer to wait to see how FEMA responds to the appeal of the initial transects before
appealing the remainder of the FIRM.

Phase 1 Estimated Project Costs by Task (Total Cost for All Participating Communities)

Task | Task Description Estimated Cost
Task 1 | Topographic-Bathymetric Digital Elevation Data $15,000
Task 2 | Develop ADCIRC+SWAN model for Southern Maine $113,000
High Performance Computing (HPC) $25,000
Task 3 | Determine the 1% annual chance TWL and associated wave conditions $42,000
Task 4 | Phase I Reporting and Documentation 315,000
Phase I Total Estimated Cost $210,000

Phase II Estimated Project Costs by Task for Community-Specific Appeal (Town of Kennebunkport)
Task 5 | Update of 2013 Appeal and Transect-Based Analysis and Mapping for 7 Transects $25,000
Task 6 | Appeal Documentation Preparation $8,000
Task 7 | Transect-Based Analysis and Mapping for Remaining Transects (Optional) $25,000
Task 8 | Appeal Follow-Up & Responses with FEMA and Town, As-Necessary TBD
Phase If Total Estimated Cost $58,000

Ransom Project 171.06082.001 Page 10

Kennebunkport-2017-FEMA _proposal.docx

June 19, 2017




Mr, Werner Gilliam, Director of Planning & Development
Town of Kennebunkport, Maine

These estimates are based on our understanding of the level of effort required for each task and our
experience on similar appeal efforts. Although our best efforts will be made to complete the work within
the estimated costs, please be aware that the flood map appeals require a number of iterative steps, where
the required level of effort depends on the outcome of a previous step, and with the uncertain nature of
numerical modeling, it is possible to encounter abnormal problems with model stability and validation
that can require additional unforeseen efforts. Because of this, we cannot be completely certain
beforehand, precisely what additional or revised analyses may be required or the associated level of effort
will be. Furthermore, we recommend that Town consider adding a 10% to 20% contingency to their
FEMA appeal budget to cover unforeseen conditions or additional efforts necessary to complete the
appeal process. If we do encounter such difficulties during the course of the work, we will immediately
notify the Town of these difficulties and/or unforeseen conditions and provide an estimate for additional
efforts that might be required. We have not included an estimated cost for Task 8, because we cannot
predict and do not know what, if any, additional information FEMA may request after we make the
formal appeal submission. After the appeal submission, and if FEMA makes requests for additional
information, we will provide the Town with a subsequent scope of work and cost estimate for responding
to their requests at that time.

Although some level of reduction in flood elevations and flood zones are typically obtained through
FEMA appeals, we cannot guarantee that our review and additional modeling will show that FEMA has
significantly over-estimated the flood hazards and that an appeal could effectively reduce the flood zones
and base flood elevations. Albeit unlikely, it is possible that our review and additional analysis may show
little difference from FEMA’s assessment of the flood hazard, or even that FEMA has under-estimated
the flood hazard for part or all of the Town. In the latter cases, it is possible that appeal submission may
not be advantageous to Town and the Town may choose not to submit the appeal. Regardless of appeal
submittal, the proposed effort will provide more up-to-date and accurate flood hazard information for the
Town, even if it does not result in revised FIRMs.

We are prepared to begin Phase [ as soon as we receive a notice to proceed. We expect Phase I will be
completed within 12 weeks. After completion of Phase I and if the appeal period has not started at that
time, we recommend waiting to proceed with Phase II until FEMA has completed the public notice
process, initiating the statutory 90-day appeal period. We recommend waiting, because on previous
occasions, we have seen FEMA make changes to the preliminary FIRMS between their time of official
release and the start of the appeal period. Based on our experience with previous FIRM updates in Maine,
information from webinars that FEMA held last year, and recent communication with the State
Floodplain Coordinator, Sue Baker, we expect FEMA will initiate the statutory 90-day appeal period
sometime between July and September 2017, and end sometime before the end of the 2017. Although it
is possible that FEMA may start the appeal period earlier'. We will complete Phase If Task 5 and Task 6
before the end of the appeal period. Time permitting, Task 7 may be fully or partially completed prior to
the end of the appeal period, or it may be permitted following the appeal period. Timing and subsequent
cost estimates for Task 8 will depend on the amount of time FEMA takes to review the appeal and any

* According to 44 CFR Vol 1. Part 67.4: In order to initiate the 90-day appeal period, FEMA must first notify the
Town Chief Executive by certified mail, publish public notices at least twice in a local newspaper within 10 days
following the certified notice to the town, and publish public notice in the federal register.

Ransom Project 171.06082.001 Page 11
Kennebunkport-2017-FEMA_proposal.docx June 19, 2017



Mr. Werner Gilliam, Director of Planning & Development
Town of Kennebunkport, Maine

responses we may have to their requests for information. Based on prior experience, we anticipate Task 8
will be completed within 6 months to 1 year after the initial appeal submission.

ORGANIZATION

Nathan Dill, P.E. will be serving as project manager for this project and will be your primary contact at
Ransom. Nathan will be assisted by Kevin Trainor, P.E. If Nathan or Kevin are not available, please feel
free to contact Peter Sherr, Senior Project Manager or Nick Sabatine, Office Manager in their absence.

BILLING AND PAYMENT OPTIONS

Ransom will send invoices electronically to the email address you provide. If you prefer to receive paper
invoices by mail, please check the “Opt Out™ option below.

Send invoices to the following email address(es):

O [ wish to opt out of electronic invoicing. Please mail invoices to this address:

Street/P.O. Box:
City/State/Zip:

For billing questions, please provide a telephone number to contact you: ()

Y ou may also choose to pay invoices via Discover, Visa, Mastercard, or American Express. To do so,
please provide the following information.

CREDIT CARD PAYMENT OPTION: (Checkone} [ Visa [J MasterCard  [[] AmEx O Discover
Card Number: Expiration Date: CVV Code
3-digit code on back: M/C, Visa,
Print Name as it appears on card: Discover

4-digit code on front of Amex

Billing Address:

Street City/State Zip

Cardholder’s Signature

Ransom Project 171.06082.001 Page 12
Kennebunkport-2017-FEMA_proposal.docx June 19, 2017



Mr. Werner Gilliam, Director of Planning & Development
Town of Kennebunkport, Maine

NOTE: If the credit card payment option is selected, the retainer amount will be charged to card upon
receipt of signed agreement. Balance owing will be charged either: (a) monthly, if time-and-materials
billing applies; or (b) at project completion, if lump-sum fee applies.

AUTHORIZATION

Prior to initiation of project work, we will need to receive an executed copy of this proposal, which will
serve as our authorization to proceed. Ransom’s Fee Schedule and Terms and Conditions are attached to
this Scope of Work as Attachments A and B, respectively, and are hereby incorporated by reference as if

fully stated herein.

We would like to thank you again for the opportunity to submit this scope of work and cost estimate, If
you have any questions regarding this proposal, please contact either of the undersigned.

Sincerely,

RANSOM CONSULTING, INC.

/])k& an V.\\

Nathan Dill, P.E.
Project Manager/Modeling Specialist

) B — 2

Peter Sherr, P.E. Nicholas Sabatine, P.G.
Senior Project Manager Vice President

APPROVED AND ACCEPTED BY THE TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE:

Signature:

Name (print or type):

Title: Date:

Ransom Project 171.06082.001 Page 13
Kennebunkport-2017-FEMA_proposal.docx June 19, 2017



ATTACHMENT A
Fee Schedule

Appeal Assistance for 2017 preliminary Flood Insurance Rate Maps
Town of Kennebunkport, Maine

Ransom Consulting, Inc.
Project 171.06068.001



Consulting
Engineers

Fee Schedule 2017
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES Hourly' Rate ($)
Principal 175-210
Licensed Site/Environmental Professional 160-210
Professional Engineer/Professional Geologist 115-210
Senior Project Manager/Specialist 140-195
Project Manager 115-155
Associate Project Manager 95-110
Project Engineer/Geologist/Hydrogeologist/Scientist 75-105
GIS Specialist/CAD 70-100
Administrative 65

EMERGENCY RESPONSE SERVICES
Overtime rates (1.5 times hourly rate) will apply for emergency response services performed
between 5:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. Monday through Friday, and all day Saturday. Premium rates

(2.0 times hourly rate) will apply for emergency response services performed on Sundays and
Holidays.

LITIGATION SUPPORT

Expert testimony will be billed at two times the standard fee schedule hourly rate.
Depositions will be billed at one and a half times the standard fee schedule hourly rate,

PROJECT SUBCONTRACTORS, MATERIALS, AND EXPENDABLE SUPPLIES

Handling charges will be added on all project supplies and services procured from outside vendors.

VEHICLES, MILEAGE

Vehicle $125.00/day

Mileage {(company or personal vehicle) IRS Prevailing Rate
EQUIPMENT RENTAL
Air Flow Meter $25/each Photoionization Detector (PID) $110/day
Generator $50/day Pump, Bladder $160/day
Stainless Steel Hand Auger $20/day Pump, Peristaltic $35/day
Hydrolab Water Quality Meter $115/day Purging Pump $40/day
Low Flow Sampling Equipment $175/day Redi Flow 2 Submersible Pump $50/day
Metal Detector $25/day Survey Equipment (Basic) $45/day
Meter Rental (DO, pH, Cond., Temp) $30/day Survey Equipment (Total Station) $75/day
Oil/Water Interface Probe $50/day Water Level Indicator $40/day

! These hourly rates are firm through December 31, 2017

Vimaserver\admin'fee schedules'fee schedule ransom 2017.docx



ATTACHMENT B
Terms and Conditions

Appeal Assistance for 2017 preliminary Flood Insurance Rate Maps
Town of Kennebunkport, Maine

Ransom Consulting, Inc.
Project 171.06068.001



RANSOM CONSULTING, INC.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Ransom Consulting, Inc. (the "Company™) shall perform the services described in the attached Work Scope on behalf of the
“Client” at a charge pursuant to cither the fixed cost enumerated in the Work Scope or at the rates set forth in the attached Fee
Schedule for time and materials and under the conditions and circumstances set forth below:

Billings/Payment:

Invoices for the Company's services shall be submitted, at the Company's option, ¢ither upon completion of such services
or at the end of each calendar month. All such invoices shall be payable within thirty (30) days, the outstanding balance
shall bear interest at the rate of one and one-half (1.5%) percent per month from date of original billing or at the highest
interest rate permitted by law, whicliever is less. The Client shall pay any service, sales or similar tax imposed upon the
Company's services. 1t is further understood and agreed that if the Client fails to pay any invoice due to the Company
within thirty (30) days after the date thereof, then the Company, without waiving any other claim or right against the
Client, and without liability whatsoever to the Client, may tetminate its performance hereunder. In the event of such
termination, the Client agrees fo promptly pay the Company for all services rendered through the date of termination.
Such payment shall include: (a} full payment of all outstanding invoices, plus interest as stated above, plus (b) full
payment of a final invoice for all work performed from the date of the last invoice outstanding through the date of
termination. All amounts shall be paid in full, with interest as stated above, within ten (10) days afier receipt by the
Client of the final invoice. [n the event that the Company places any invoice which is unpaid after the due date with an
agency or an attomney for collection, the Client shall pay all costs and expenses of such collection, including without
limitation attomey's fees and court costs, if any.

Limitations:

The Client recognizes that the Company's services are solely for the benefit of the Client and these services will include
judgments based upon limited data rather than upon scientifie fact. The Client understands that the Company may be
required to make judgments or decisions based upon information provided by the Client or its contractors, and agrees that
the Company may rely on such information in performing services under this Agreement. The Client understands and
agrees that the services rendered by the Company shall be advisory only, and that the Client retains all decision-making
responsibility with respect to all projects in which the Company participates. The Company shall perform its services in
accordance with generally accepted practices and the Company shall be responsible solely for its own negligence. Any
delayed use of the results of the Company's services will require updates, THE SERVICES OF THE COMPANY
SHALL BE RENDERED WITHOUT ANY WARRANTY, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE
COMPANY BE LIABLE FOR SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OF ANY KIND
ARISING OUT OF SERVICES PERFORMED HEREUNDER BY THE COMPANY, ITS AGENTS, EMPLOYEES OR
OTHER REPRESENTATIVES, EVEN IF THE COMPANY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH
DAMAGES. THE TOTAL LIABILITY OF THE COMPANY TO THE CLIENT OR ANY OTHER PERSON NOT A
PARTY TO THIS AGREEMENT ARISING OUT OF ANY SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE COMPANY
HEREUNDER SHALL NOT EXCEED THE AGGREGATE SUM OF COMPANY INVOICES SUBMITTED TO THE
CLIENT FOR SERVICES PERFORMED HEREUNDER.

The Client agrees to notify all contractors and/or subcontractors who may perform work in connection with any report or
study prepared by the Company of the above limitations on the Company’s liability for errors, omissions or professional
negligence, and to require, as a condition precedent of their pecforming work, a like limitation of liability as against the
Company. In the event that the Client fails to obtain a like limitation of liability, any liability of the Company to such
contractor or subcontractor arising out of alleged error, omissions or professional negligence shall be aflocated between
the Client and the Company in such a manner that the aggregate liability of the Company to all parties, including the
Client, shall not exceed the aggregate amount of invoices submitted hereunder. Tn the event that the Client makes a claim
against the Company, at law or otherwise, for any alleged error, omission or act arising out of the performance of the
Company's services, and the Client fails to prove such ¢laim upon final adjudication, then the Client shall pay all costs
incurred by the Company in defending itself against such claim, including, without limitation, attomey's fees and costs
and fees and expenses of experts. [n no event may the Client bring any claim, action or proceeding arising out of the
services provided by the Company hercunder more than two (2) years after the date such services were provided.

Without limiting the generality of the above limitations on liability of the Company, the Company will not be liable for
damage or injury arising from damage to or interference with subterrancan structures (including without limitation, pipes,
tanks, telephone cables, etc.) which are not called to the Company's attention and not correctly shown on the plans
furnished by the Client in connection with work performed under this Work Scope.

Ransom Coasulting, Inc. Terms and Conditions Page 1 of 4
K:\Terms and Conditions' Terms and Conditions-Ransom.doc Cclober 28, 2011



6.

i

Right of Entry:

The Client hereby authorizes the Company, or represents and warrants that authorization has been duly granted to the
Company (if the project location is not owned by the Client), its agents, staff, consultants and contractors or
subcontractors, to enter upon the project location for the purpose of performing and with the right to perform all acts,
studies and research, including without limitation, the making of test borings and other soil and water samplings, pursuant
to the Work Scope. The Client hereby recognizes that the use of exploration equipment may unavoidably affect, alter or
damage the terrain and affect vegetation, building, structures and equipment, in, at or upon the area being studied. The
Client will not hold the Company liable or responsible for any such reasonable effect, alteration or damage. The Client
agrees to pay the Company an additional fee for any services performed at the Client's request to restore the condition of
the area being studied.

On-Site Services:

Any services or monitoring provided by the Company at a site during project construction, remedial action or other site
activities are not intended 1o include review of the adequacy of any contractor’s health and safety measures in, on or near
the construction site and will not relieve any contractor of its responsibilities for performing the work in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations and with the plans and specifications, The Company and the Client agree that the
contractor will be solely and completely responsible for working conditions on the job site, inciuding health and safety of
all persons and property during the performance of the work, and compliance with OSHA, NIOSH, U.5. EPA, and other
applicable regulations.

Licensed Site Professional Services:
If any of the services to be performed under the Work Scope relate to sites in Massachusetts, the following provisions will

apply:

In the event that any employee or subcontractor of the Company acts as a licensed site professional {("LSP"), as defined in
the Massachusetts Contingency Plan (310 CMR 40.0000), the Client acknowledges that (a) any opinions rendered by the
LSP will reflect the LSP's independent professional judgment based upon the studies, investigations, tests, analyses, level
of supervision or other services that the LSP determines to be necessary or appropriate in order to establish a basis for
such opinions, (b) other professionals and the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection ("MA DEP") may
have legitimate differences of opinion regarding various aspects of an environmental site assessment or remediation and
{c) the MA DEP may require additional assessment and/or remediation services, even though the Company's services
have been performed competently and in accordance with the standard of care set forth in the Massachusetts Contingency
Plan, as in effect at the time of the Company's original provision of services. The Client agrees to cooperate with the LSP
and the MA DEP in obtaining all additional services or information deemed necessary by the LSP or the MA DEP. If the
Company and the Client are unable to reach mutual agreement on the terms under which the services or information will
be obtained, the Company may terminate its services upon giving written notice to the Client, and the Client will pay the
Company for all services and expenses through the date of termination in accordance with this Agreement.

In addition, the Client recognizes that the MA DEP may at any time audit all or part of the LSP's services or the
assessment or remediation in which the LSP participated. The Client acknowledges that such an audit is not an indication
that the services were deficient or failed to comply with the Massachusetts Contingency Plan as in effect at the time the
Company originally provided its services. The Company shall be entitled to additional compensation for any time spent
and to reimbursement for any expenses incurred in responding to any MA DEP audit (in accordance with the Company's
fee schedule then in effect).

Indemnification:

The Client acknowledges that the Company has not generated or released and is not otherwise responsible, in whole or in
part, for the presence of any oil, hazardous materials, pollutants, asbestos or other potentially dangerous substance at the
site identified in the Work Scope. Therefore, the Client agrees to defend and save the Company, its officers, employees
and subcontractors harmless from all liability, losses, damages, claims, demands and suits, including cxpenses of suit and
reasonable attormeys' fees, arising from personal injuries, disease or death, property loss or damage, natural resource
damages, injuries to others (including personnel of the Client and of the Company, its contractors and subcontractors
performing work hereunder), or from air, water or soil pollution or environmental contamination arising out of or in any
manner connected with or related to the performance of this Work Scope, except if such injury. loss or damage shall be
caused solely by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the Company, its employees, agents or represcntatives.,

Duty of the Client:

It shall be the duty of the Client to advise the Company promptly of any known or reasonably knowable oil or hazardous
materials or any condition existing in, on or near the premises upon which work is to be performed by the Company's
employees or subcontractors that presents a potential or possible health hazard or nuisance. 1f the Client fails to advise
the Company or, notwithstanding such advice, unanticipated occurrences of such substances or conditions are discovered
during the course of the work, and such discovery in the judgment of the Company results in or may result in injury or a

Ransom Consulting, Inc. Tenms and Conditions Page 2 of 4
K:'Terms and Conditions' Terms and Conditions-Ransom.doc October 28, 2011



8.

10.

11.

health risk to persons, whether the Company's personnel, the Client's personnel or others, the Client agrees that it shall
assume full responsibility and liability for any resulting personal injury, including discase, medical expenses andfor death,
property damage or economic loss, including consequential damages.

Changes in Work Scope:

If any unforescen hazardous materials or other unforeseen conditions are encountered during execution of the work
which, in the judgment of the Company, significantly affect or may affect the work or the recommended Work Scope, the
Company will notify the Client as soon as practicable. In such event, the Client and the Company agree to pursue one of
the following: (1} if practicable, in the judgment of the Company, complete the original Work Scope; (2) modify the
Work Scope and budget estimate to include study of the previously unforeseen conditions, with this Agreement being
amended accordingly and in writing; or (3) terminate the Work Scope. In the event of termination, the Client agrees to
pay the Company in full for all work completed and fees due until written termination notice has been received by the
Company and to pay all costs incurred by the Company prior to and in connection with discontinuing the work hereunder,
such as completion of files and preparation of a written report to the Client of findings to date of termination and all costs
associated with subcontract termination. The Client also acknowledges that the Company may be required by statute,
regulation or court order to report the finding of oil or hazardous materials or certain other matters to state or federal
authorities.

Confidentinlity:

The Company will not disclose information about its services, its reports or information which the Client has provided to
the Company and designated as confidential, without the Client's prior consent, except to the extent necessary (a) for the
Company to perform its services, (b) to comply with professional standards to protect public health, safety and the
environment or {(¢) to comply with court orders, laws, governmental regulations and other legal requirements.

Information generally available to the public, technical information the Company may have developed independently and
information the Company acquires from third parties without any beeach of duty will not be considered confidential. If by
order of court, statute or regulation ("orders"), the Company is required to disclose information in its possession, it shali
give the Client prompt notice of such facts. Thereafier, the Company may, without liability to the Client or others,
comply with such orders. [fany claims are asserted against the Company because of its compliance, the Client will hold
the Company harmless from such claims and any reasonable expenses incurred, provided that the Company's disclosure is
made under a reasonable bona fide belief, or on advice of counsel, that disclosure is required by such orders.

Opinions of Probable Clean-up and Disposal Costs:

The Company may give opinions of probable clean-up and disposal costs as part of the Work Scope. These opinions may
also involve approximate quantity estimates. The Client understands and agrees that quantity estimates are estimates
only, and are not accurate enough for clean-up and disposal bids. The Company does not guarantee or warrant the
accuracy of estimates of probable clean-up and disposal costs as compared to bids of Contractors, or compared to actual
clean-up and disposal costs.

Documents:

All reports, boring logs, field data, field notes, laboratory test data, calculations, estimates and other documents prepared
by the Company shall remain the property of the Company. The Client agrees that all reports and other work furnished to
the Clicnt or its agents, shall be utilized by the Client solely for the purposes of the contemplated project. Any documents
prepared by the Company which are not paid for by the Client, shall be returned upon demand and shall not be used by
the Client for any purpose whatsoever. The Company will retain all pertinent records relating to performed services for a
period of two (2) years following submission of the report or any other period mandated by law, during which peried the
records will be made available to the Client at the Company's Office at all reasonable times. Copies will be prepared by
the Company for the Client for reasonable cost of reproduction.

Disposal of Contaminated Material:

The Clicnt agrees that the Company is not, and has no responsibility as, a handler, generator, owner, operator, teeater,
storer, transporter or disposer of oil, hazardous material or toxic substances found or identified at a site except as relates to
laboratory samples. With the exception of laboratory samples, the Company does not arrange directly or indirectly for the
transport, disposal, storage or treatment of any material, inciuding oil or hazardous waste. Arrangements for the handling,
removal, treatment, storage, transportation and disposal of oil, hazardous material or constituents found or identificd at the
site will be undertaken by others.

Samples:

The Client will pay all costs associated with the storage, transport and disposal of samples. All samples of soil, water,
waste, stock or other materials collected from the site will be disposed of sixty (60) days after completion of laboratory
testing unless the Client makes other arrangements at the time it accepts the Company's proposal or unless applicable Jaw
requires their retention, in which event the Client will pay an additional fee for storage as determined by the Company.

Runsom Consulting, Inc. Terms and Coenditions Page 3 of 4
K:'Tenns and Conditions' Terms and Conditions-Ransom.doc October 28, 2011



14,  Public Liability:
Company represents and warrants that its staff are protected by Worker's Compensation insurance with statutory limits;
and that Company has such coverage under Public Liability and Property Damage insurance policies which Company
deems adequate. Certificates for all such policies of insurance shall be provided to Client upon written request. Only
within and only to the extent of the limits and conditions of such insurance, Company agrees to indemnify and save Client
harmless from any claims, demands, suits, or liabilities arising from any negligent acts by Company, its agents, staff,
contractors or consultants employed or engaged by it. In no event shall Company be liable or responsible for any loss,
damage, or liability, including but not limited to fire and explosion, beyond the amounts, limits, and conditions of such
insurance, or if such loss, damage, or liability is excluded from such coverage of such insurance.

15.  Reliance:
The Client recognizes that the services and the contents of any project reports and associated documents provided to the
Client by the Company are solely for the benefit of the Client and its heirs, successors and permitted assigns whose
reliance thercon is not independent of Client's, The contents of any project reports and associated documents, including
but not limited to any opinions and recommendations embodied therein, are not to be quoted or otherwise referenced to
nor furnished to any other persen, and no other personat shall be entitled to rely thereon, without the Company's prior
written consent. The Company and the Client agree that such consent will be given by the Company only upon its receipt
of (i} additional consideration in an amount sufficient in its sole discretion to compensate the Company for its additional
exposure, and (ii) the written agreement of the third party seeking 10 rely upon the contents of any project reports and
associated documents aceepting the entire contents of this Agreement, including the specified Work Scope, the Terms and
Conditions, and any additional fimitations included within the body of the applicable reports and/or documents upon
which reliance is sought. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company may withheld its consent for any reason or no
reason in s sole discretion.

16.  General:
In an effort to resolve any conflicts that arise during the Project or following the completion of the Project, the Client and
the Company agree that all disputes between them arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the Project shall be
submitted to nonbinding mediation unless the patties mutually agree otherwise.

The Client and the Company further agree to include a similar mediation provision in all agreements with independent
contractors and consultants retained for the Project and to require all independent contractors and consultants also to
include a similar mediation provision in all agreements with their subcontractors, subconsultants, suppliers and
fabricators, thereby providing for mediation as the primary method for dispute tesolution between the parties to all those
agreements.

The Work Scope, Fee Schedule and these Terms and Conditions constitute the entire agreement of the partics and there is
no other agreement relating to the services to be rendered by the Company that is not expressed herein. This Agreement
shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with, the substantive taws of The Commonwealth of
Massachusetts without regard to its principles of conflicts of laws,

Each party is and shall perform this Agreement as an independent contractor and, as such, shall have and maintain
complete control over all of its employees, agents (including without limitation, any subcontractors) and operations.
Neither party nor anyone employed by it shall be, represent, act, purport to act or be deemed to be the agent,
representative, employee or servant of the other party.

These Terms and Conditions shall take precedence over any inconsistent or contradictory provisions contained in any
proposal, contract, purchase order, requisition, notice to proceed or like document.

If any of these Terms and Conditions shalt be finally determined to be invalid or unenforceable in whole or part, the
remaining provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect, and be binding upon the parties hereto. The parties
agree to reform these conditions and to replace any such invalid or unenforecable provision with a valid and enforceable
provision as close in meaning as possible to the intention of the stricken provision.

Ransom Consulting, Inc. is an Equal Opportunity Employer.

Ransom Consulting, Inc. Ferms and Conditions Paged of 4
K:\Terms and Conditions' Tenns and Conditions-Ransom.doc October 28, 20H1



<%
Agenda

ltem
Divider

<Gl



Verrill Dana.. ¢

Attorneys at Law

SCOTT D. ANDERSON ONE PORTLAND SQUARE

PARTNER PORTLAND, MAINC 04112-0586

sanderson@verrilidona.com 207-774-4000 » FAX 207-774-7499

Direct: 207-253-4540 www.verrilldana.com
May 8, 2017

Via Electronic and 1J.S. Mail

Laurie A. Smith, Town Manager

Werner D. Gilliam, CFM, Director of Planning & Development
Town of Kennebunkport

6 Elm Street

Kennebunkport, ME 04046

Re:  Request for Zoning Ordinance Amendment
Verizon Wireless

Dear Ms. Smith and Mr. Gilliam:

Following up on my recent discussion with Werner, T am writing on behalf of Verizon
Wireless to ask that you consider our request to amend the Kennebunkport Zoning Ordinance to
permit so-called “small cell” installations, small wireless telecommunications installations, on
utility poles and other similar structures in all zones within the Town. The following is a
discussion of the use of small cells and the existing restrictions in the Town’s zoning ordinance
that prohibit this activity, as well as why a change to the Town’s zoning ordinance would be in
the public interest.

Verizon’s Current Proposal and the Need for Smali Cells

Attached at Tab “A” are plans for a series of small cell installations within the Goose
Rocks Zoning District. As you can see from the plans, a small cell facility is a small wireless
facility, instatled on a utility pole, light pole, or other existing structure, that helps to improve
coverage and network capacity in specific areas. These facilities are comprised of two primary
components: a single canister antenna, approximately 40 inches high and 12 inches in diameter,
and the “remote radio head,” or RRH, that facilitates the sending and receiving of cellular signals
to and from users’ phones,

These facilities are deployed to improve service in areas of high cellphone use. They are
often installed in downtown areas, sports stadiums, shopping malls, and other areas of
concentrated demand. As you are likely aware, the growth in mobile data traffic is growing
exponentially. In the year 2015 alone, the use of mobile data in the United States grew a
staggering 55%. Annual nationwide increases are estimated at more than 40%, and the use of
“small cell” facilities allows carriers like Verizon to strengthen the network in anticipation of the
rollout of “5G,” or Fifth Generation, cell service.

Augusta, ME » Portland. ME » Boston, MA » Providence, Ri Westport, CT « Washington. D.C



i

e

May 8, 2017
Page 2

This planned network improvement is necessary to accommodate the use of wireless
networks by the growing list of devices that depend on this service. In addition to cell phones,
residents are using numerous other “smart” devices, including tablets, home appliances, and
voice-activated home organizers. Businesses rely on wireless networks for internal
communication systems and equipment operations. Municipalities are using wireless networks
for smart parking meter systems, and for managing utility functions.

Finally, small cell sites are not lit, they do not generate any noise, and they do not result
in any other impacts to surrounding areas, such as traffic, dust, or stormwater runoff. Given the
amount of equipment and wiring on utility and light poles, the addition of small cell facilities
does not significantly increase visual impacts. Use of small cells also allows carriers to improve
coverage without the need for new cell towers, which further reduces the impact of network
improvements on municipalities and their residents.

Kennebunkport Zoning Ordinance

Verizon’s facilities are considered “wireless telecommunications facilities,” and are a
permitted use only in the Free Enterprise Zoning District. Verizon’s proposed installation is
within the Goose Rocks District. As such, these small cell sites are not permitted. Given that the
increase in demand in Kennebunkport is in the more developed areas, not the Free Enterprise
District, Verizon cannot meet its coverage objectives with new facilities—either larger towers or
small cells—just in the FE District.

Kennebunkport’s existing ordinance provided a balanced regulatory framework when
carriers such as Verizon were constructing new tower sites. Your ordinance, like many in
Maine, were not drafted with small cell facilities in mind. Given the smaller impact and special
siting considerations for small cells, Kennebunkport is not alone in considering a review and
update of its wireless ordinance. We are currently working with the towns of Scarborough and
Ogunquit on possible changes to those ordinances, and work with other communities will occur
as Verizon expands the use of small cells to meet the demands of Maine residents.

An Amendment to the Zoning Ordinance is in the Public Interest

We appreciate that a request from a single potential applicant may not always justify a
broader change in your zoning ordinance. Further, the Town may utilize a contract zone if a
change is appropriate, but necessary only for a single applicant or property owner. In this case,
however, we feel that a broader amendment is in the Town’s interest, for the following reasons.

First, the use of small cells represents an evolution in network design that is not often
accommodated in existing municipal ordinances. As you know, the bulk of your wireless
ordinance was taken from the Maine State Planning Office’s sample wireless ordinance, which
was drafted at a time when wireless companies relied exclusively on new tower sites in Maine to
extend and improve coverage. As such, it is an effective ordinance for regulating new towers,
but fails to address the use of newer technology.

Second, it is in the best interests of the town to encourage wireless companies to use
existing structures for new antenna installations. This can minimize the need for new towers.
Your current ordinance does attempt to do this—you provide for expedited permitting by the




May 8, 2017
Page 3

code officer for antenna installations on existing wireless towers, although such projects are still
subject to the zoning limitations for wireless facilities. The town might consider doing what
Kennebunk, Falmouth, and other towns have done, to permit the installation of antennas on
existing structures in all, or nearly all, zoning districts. Installations on such “alternative tower
structures” obviate the need for new towers, and by permitting such installations more widely in
town you can direct and encourage carriers to use existing structures, while still strictly
regulating the siting of new towers. [ have enclosed a copy of a generic smail cell ordinance we
have proposed in several municipalities, which encourages carriers to utilize small cell facilities,
both to improve service and to minimize {or eliminate) the impacts of new towers (attached at
Tab “B™). Although we appreciate that if the town proceeds to revisit its existing ordinance it
will develop its own recommendations, we thought it would be helpful to provide one option to
consider.

Third, a change in your ordinance may limit the town’s legal exposure due to the current
restrictions. As the demands for network strength continue, wireless carriers must add facilities
in order to maintain the functionality of the network. Although cities and towns may require
permits for wireless facilities, even those installed on existing structures, towns should avoid
local ordinances that have the effect of prohibiting installations in any significant areas,
including residential, as well as commercial, areas. An ordinance that regulates wireless
facilities in all locations, without banning them in certain areas, allows towns to monitor and
manage the impacts from these facilities, while allowing appropriately scaled and sited projects
in areas where improved coverage is needed. Although the “first generation” of local wireless
ordinances regulated new towers by allowing them in some places, and banning them in others,
regulation of this newer (and smaller) technology requires a more nuanced and flexible approach.

Proposed Next Steps

We understand that any change in your ordinance requires a thoughtful process, with
input from residents and other stakeholders. We would appreciate an opportunity to meet with
the Board of Selectmen to provide a more detailed summary of the growth of small cell facilities
in meeting the current and expanding demand for data access, and to answer any questions the
Board may have about any potential change irr your ordinance that would permit such
development.

We are available at any time convenient to the Selectmen, and I will call to follow up.
Thank you for your consideration of our request and please do not hesitate to contact me if you
have any questions or need any further information.

We look forward to hearing from you.

D. Anderson

SDA/mit
Enclosures



@

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE

~ INCORPORATED 1653 ~
MAINE’'S FINEST RESORT

Memo
July 5% 2017
RE: Telecommunications Ordinance

From: Werner Gilliam CFM Director of Planning and Development
To: Laurie Smith, Town Manager

The Town of Kennebunkport has a separate stand-alone wireless telecommunications ordinance that was
adopted November 2™ 1999. It has not under gone any revisions or modifications since then. In the past 18
years, much has changed in the world relative to wireless telecommunications. Gone is the occasional use of
a cell phone for emergency calls, enter the world where cell phones are a functional necessity, spanning well
beyond our use as a communication tool.

The Town has been approached by Verizon Wireless to review and comment on a proposal to install
numerous small scale cellular nodes which would be located on top of existing utility poles.

Existing Proposed|

6 Elm Street, P.O. Box 566, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046 = Tel; (207) 967-4243 Fax: (207) 967-8470



TOWNOF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE

~ INCORPORATED 1653 ~
MAINE’S FINEST RESORT

As one can imagine Kennebunkport’s wireless telecommunications ordinance does not address
these types of facilities, nor other wireless service options that are now available. The expectations
and demands of cellular and wireless data use have also changed dramatically since the original
enactment of our ordinance,

In light of significant changes in technology, public service demands and federal law conceming
wireless telecommunications, I would like for the Board of Selectmen to authorize staff to move
forward working with town counsel and representatives from Verizon to author proposed revisions
to Kennebunkport’s Telecommunications Ordinance. [ expect that 75% of the revisions will be legal
and technical in nature, with the other 25% being subjective in terms of permitting process,
locations, etc. I anticipate engaging either an ad hoc committee of residents as appointed by the
Board of Selectmen or would request input from the Planning Board.

Without an updated ordinance Kennebunkport is potentially exposing itself to legal challenges that
could be avoided with some updates.

6 Elm Street, P.O. Box 566, Kennebunkport, Mainc 04046 - Tel: (207) 967-4243 Fax: (207) 967-8470



<%
Agenda

ltem
Divider

g



M

11.10  Growth Management Permit Ré/guired

A. Purpose. The purpose of this section is to:

1.

Ensure fairness in the allocation of building permits between sub-dividers
and single lot property owners.

Avoid a situation in which the rapid completion of major subdivisions
could outstrip the Town’s capability to expand its municipal services.

Guide the Town’s growth in an orderly fashion so that the annual increase
in population can be adequately served by community facilities as those
services are needed.

Manage the Town’s future residential growth in a manner consistent with
the Town of Kennebunkport’s Comprehensive Plan.

B. Compliance required; violations.

All new dwelling units, including new manufactured housing dwelling
units, within the Town, whether occupied permanently or seasonally,
shall conform with the provisions of this section. It shall be a violation of
this section for any person to construct or place a new dwelling unit
within the Town, without first having obtained a growth management
permit and building permit, in accordance with this section and Article

11, from the Code Enforcement Officer, unless such construction or
placement constitutes an exception under this section.

If a dwelling unit has been constructed or placed without a growth
management permit or building permit as required under the provisions of
this Ordinance, it shall also be a violation for any person to convey such
dwelling unit.

C. Exemptions. The following are exempt from the provisions of this section:

1.

The repair, replacement, reconstruction or alteration of any existing
building or structure not resulting in additional dwelling units;

Housing for the elderly which is constructed, operated, subsidized or
funded, in whole or in part, by an agency of the state or federal

government; and

The construction or alteration of a nonresidential building or structure.



4.

The Construction or alteration of a new Accessory Apartment.

G. Application. Applications for growth management permits shall comply with the

following:
1.

A growth management permit application must be completed by the lot
owner of record and/or the owner’s agent, including all endorsements and
certifications.

Applications shall be on forms provided by the Town. The Code
Enforcement Officer may request additional information and shall have
the authority to require that the application be revised or supplemented in
order to meet state or local requirements.

Growth management permit applications shall be accompanied by a non-
refundable application fee e£$256-00, as set annually by the Municipal
Officers, a complete application for a building permit and Planning Board
and/or Zoning Board of Appeals approval, when necessary.




<
Agenda

ltem
Divider

g



Land Use

Planning and

WRIGHT-PIERCE =
Engineering a Betier Environment
Design

June 23, 2017
W-P Project No. 13431B
DRAFT
Ms. Laurie Smith
Town Manager
Town of Kennebunkport
6 Elm Street
P.O. Box 566
Kennebunkport, ME 04046

Subject: Proposal for Professional Services related to Final Design for the Kennebunkport Parks
and Recreation Depariment’s Office, adjacent to the Kennebunkport Consolidated School

Dear Ms. Smith:

Wright-Pierce is pleased to provide you with the following proposal to provide final design services
associated with construction of a new Parks and Recreation Department office building at the Parsons
Field facilities located adjacent to the Kennebunkport Consolidated School.

PROJECT BACKGROUND AND UNDERSTANDING:

The Town intends to construct a new office building for the Parks and Recreation Department on the
property adjacent to the Kennebunkport Consolidated School. This new building will be a single story,
wood framed building, approximately 2,000 square feet in size and will be based on the preliminary design
developed by Wright-Pierce in 2016 that was used for developing a budget for the project. We understand
information on the existing site is available from the school expansion project. The Town will provide
electronic CADD files of the site drawings, along with geotechnical information, eliminating the need for
surveying or geotechnical services under this project. The Town will be responsible for the fees of any state
or local permits required for this project. To limit our fee for services we have included two meetings with
the Planning Board. Additional meetings or changes to the design would be considered additional services.

PROPOSED SCOPE OF SERVICES:
Upon authorization to proceed, we will perform the following tasks:

¢ Prepare detailed drawings and specifications based on the Project Background and Understanding
outlined above.

» Prepare detailed drawings and specifications of the site design, access, parking, grading and site
utilities.

* Prepare detailed drawings and specifications of the building design, structure and finishes.

¢ Prepare detail drawings and specifications of the HVAC systems and plumbing.

Offices Throughout New England | www.wright-pierce.com 75 Washington Avenue
Portland, ME 04086 USA
Phone 207.761.2991 | Fax 207.761.2978



Parks and Recreation Office Building Final Design Proposal e
June 23, 2017
DRAFT

* Prepare detailed drawings and specifications of the lighting and power systems. Note that this does not
include the telephone system, public address system or computer networking. These specialty systems
are typically designed and installed by separate contractors hired directly by the building owner.

* Provide an estimate of the anticipated construction cost to assist the Town in determining the funds
required for the project.

» Provide the Town with (1) one electronic PDF file and (3) hard copy files of the final design plans,
specifications and construction cost estimate.

COMPENSATION AND SCHEDULE
Wright-Pierce will complete the above Proposed Scope of Services for on a time and expense basis, not-
to-exceed the sum of $62,000.

We would expect to start our services promptly after receipt of your acceptance of this agreement. We
would anticipate that conceptual design and planning level estimate materials would be available for
review by the Town for comment within 30 days of receipt of a notice to proceed.

ADDITIONAL SERVICES
Any additional services performed at the Client's request and authorization will be compensated on a
time and expense basis.

Wright-Pierce is available to assist the Town in bidding the project and providing services during
construction as an additional service.

AGREEMENT

This Letter Agreement and the attached Terms & Conditions represent the entire understanding between
you and us with respect to the above services and may not be amended or modified unless such
amendment or modification is signed by both parties to this contract and attached thereto. If this letter
satisfactorily sets forth your understanding of the arrangement between us, please sign a copy of this letter
in the space below and return it to us.

~ We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the Town of Kennebunkport and look forward to
working with you. Please contact us at 761-2991 in the event you have any questions.

Very truly yours,

WRIGHT-PIERCE

Travis I. Pryor, RLA
Project Manager



134318

SCHEDVULE OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS
FOR
AGREEMENT BETWEEN
TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE
AND
WRIGHT-PIERCE
DATED

062317



Parks and Recreation Office Building Final Design Proposal

June 23, 2017
DRAFT

Accepted this day of June, 2017

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE:

By

Authorized Representative

Title

WRIGHT-PIERCE:

By

Jonathan C. Edgerton, PE

Title Senior Vice President

-



<
Agenda

ltem
Divider

<G



L)

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE

- INCORPORATED 1653 ~
MAINE’S FINEST RESORT

June 12, 2017

Stuart A. Barwise, Chairman
Kennebunkport Board of Selectmen
P.O. Box 566

Kennebunkport, ME 04046

Re:  Mills Road Subdivision, Proposed Sewer Extension
Mills Road - Map 23, Block 1, Lot 19A

Dear Chairman Barwise;

In accordance with Kennebunkport Sewer Use Ordinance Section 2(B), the
Kennebunkport Planning Board has reviewed the application and all related documentation
submitted by Cripple Creek, LLC with regard to its proposed sewer extension to service the
Mills Read Subdivision to be located on Mills Road. The Planning Board has also reviewed a
letter from Thomas S. Greer, P.E., of Pinkham & Greer dated May 11, 2017. Based upon its
review, the Planning Board voted at its June 7, 2017 meeting to recommend to the Board of
Selectman that the sewer extension project should be built and that the proposed
unconditional gift of that sewer extension to the Town should be accepted.

The Planning Board's recommendation is based on the fact that, for a cluster style
subdivision, there is no reasonable alternative method of sewage deposal at the site. In
addition, the proposed sewer extension will result in significant benefit to environmental
quality in that area.

ipcerely,

Peter Fellenz, C-ha.irman
Kennebunkport Planning Board

cc: Laurie Smith, Town Manager
File

6 Elm Street, P.O. Box 566, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046 « Tel: (207} 967 4243 Fax: (207) 967
8470



Sewer Extension Application

Project Name: Mills Road Subdivision

Applicant: __ Cripple Creek, LLC / PDF Development and Construction

Address: PO Box 1179, Saco, ME 04072 1 PO Box 313, W. Kennebunk, ME 04096
Phone number: _207.590-8295 207-590-2671

Engineering firm: Afttar Engineering, Inc.

Contact Person: _ Kenneth A. Wood F P.E., Michael Sudak, E.I.T.
Address: 1284 State Road, Eliot, ME 03903

Phone number: ~P62-204.0486- 43 00D

Contractor: Noi determined

Contact Person;
Address:
Phone number:

Location of the proposed extension Tax Map # 23 Block# 1 Lot# 19A

Street Address: 98 Mills Road

Does the Sewer Extension have frontage on the collection system? Yes[ ] No [}
Is this expansion for industrial or commercial use? Yes [ ] No [
If yes will the user have to comply with US EPA Pretreatment Standards? Yes [ | No { )

Is this property in the resource protection, shore land protection, critical edge, and flood plain
zone or in 8 sand dune area? Yes[ ] No([X

Do you have the necessary environmental permits to do the project? Yes [ | Not Ye
Will this project require planning board approval in any way? Yes{yd No| ]
The Sewer Extension will be

A. Within the public way [

B. On private property ouly []
C. On both public and private property [

Page 1 of 9



Description of Sewer Extension 800
Linear feet of pipe in the public way.
Linear feet of pipe on private property. 1020

Number of new sewer units to be served:
On the public way A1
On private property 14

Estimated start date of construction? __(/1/2017
11172017

Estimated completion date?

n - . ol
General Description of extension: 2" HDEP low pressure force main, Each dwelling will

be served with a low pressure pump system ( e-one or Bames Elotran)

All applications must include the following:
A survey showing the location and the proposed sewer extension

A copy of the survey and the engineering drawing’s, will be submitted on a 3.5 inch
computer disk in the DWG format for use with AutoCAD along with the paper drawings.

A list of all the property owners and mailing address that are within two hundred (200)
feet of the proposed sewer extension. This list must be submitted on a 3.5 computer disk
and be able to be used with MS Word.

Proof of the owner of the project to secure 2 letter of credit, equal to the amount of
125% of the estimated cost of the project. This letter will be issued to The Town of
Kennebuniport before approval of the project is given.

In consideration of the granting of this application, the undersigned agrees ta the following:

To accept and abide by all the rules and regulations of the Town of Kennebunkport Sewer

Dept. and the State of Maine Depl. of Environmental Protections and the US
Environmental Protection Agency and all pertinent ordinances and regulation.

Approval of this application is only for the concept of the sewer extension. Approval of
the construction plans and specifications will be needed before any construction can

begin.

Page 2 of 9



If approval is given for this project, two (2) complete sets of plans and specifications
must  be given to the Sewer Superintendent for his approval. The plans and specifications must
be approved by the Superintendent at least 30 day before the start of the project.

To submit a sewer connection application for each building that will be connecling into
the collection system, due to this sewer extension and pay all the appropriate fees.

Application Fees:

$5.00/ fool of pipe in the sewer extension. $_ 214300
$500.00 / sewer unit served by this project. $

All fees will be based on the higher amount of the per foot costs or the per units cost.

Date: &giz,[mﬂ Signed: @K/O (P\.Q fa-ds Y1

{Applicant or if a corpyeation the president only)
s 1o - % Application Fees paid M .

{Certification by)

Date of approval from The Board of Selectran: -

Date of Town Meeting:

Date of Acceptance or Rejection at Town Meeting:

Page 3 of 8



PINKHAM & GREER
File: 17130 CIVIL ENGINEERS

28 VANNAK AVE. FORTLAND, ME 04103
Tet: 077815342 Fox: 207.7814245

May 11, 2017
i
']
1
Mr. Allan Moir !
Kennebunkport Sewer District
PO Box 1038 /ﬂ j>
Kennebunkport, ME 04046 &

RE: MILLS ROAD SUBDIVISION, SEWER CAPACITY REVIEW

Dear Allan,

As requested, we have reviewed the Mills Road Subdivision plans prepared by
ATTAR Engineering, Inc. The plans include:

Sheet 1 - Cover Sheet

Sheet 2 - Subdivision Plan

Sheet 3 - Grading and Utility Plan

Sheet 4 - Roadway Plan and Profile

Sheet 5 - Sewer Plan and Profile

Sheet 6 - Site Details

Sheet 7 - Site Details

Sheet 1 of 2 - Stormwater Existing Conditions
Sheet 2 of 2 - Stormwater Developed Conditions

Included in the submittal is the Sewer Extension Application. | received the hour
readings from Pump Station |l from Ron Taylor.

Please note Sheet 6 was updated with cleanout details dated 5/10/17.

This subdivision of 14 single family homes will add approximately 2,184 gallons
per day based on 2.6 people per home and 60 gallons per day per person.

This flow will add approximately 22 minutes of run time per day at Pump Station
Il. It will operate well within an acceptable range.

The treatment plant is well within its licensed operating flows and the additionat
flow will not create an issue.

The design of the pressure system is within customary design parameters and
should function well



Mr. Allan Moir PINKHAM & GREER
May 11, 2017 CIVIL ENGINEERS

Page 2 of 2
File: 17130

Based on my review of the data, the Town's wastewater collection and treatment
system has the capacity for the additional flow.

Let me know if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

PINKHAM & GREER,
CIVIL ENGINEERS

omas S. E.

cc: Werner Gilliam, Ken Wood, File

TSGhs



AUSTIN, MICHAEL H & ROBER
PO BOX 725
KENNEBUNKPORT, ME 040456-0725

BERYL R BILDERBACK REVOCA
PO BOX 611501
ROSEMARY BEACH, FL 32461

BUCHEMIN, PAUL & JOANNE
15 CEDAR CREST LANE
HAVERHILL, MA 01830

FEDERMAN, FRANK & LINDA
90 MILLS ROAD
KENNEBUNKPORT, ME 04046

FIRTH IRREV TRUST & MARY
30 HACKENSACK RD
CHESTNUT HILL, MA 02467

GRAY, CAROL RUTH
14111 GABLE HILL DRIVE
SUN CITY WEST, AZ 85375

GRAY, CAROL RUTH
14111 GABLE HILL DRIVE
SUN CITY WEST, AZ 85375

HANSON, GALE M
23 IRETARD
SHREWBURY, MA 01545

SCHAUB, JANET S & SCHAUB
11 LONG FELLOW ROAD
CAMBRIDGE, MA 02138

WRIGHT, PATRICIA L
PO BOX 7149
CAPE PORPOISE, ME 04014-7149



TELE LAY

r,lq

’ )




AY® 5TA43E

By %. % Al

'
[
I
{0k
»
# ]
s
e
= .-
]
pr— — i
——— T
-
|
|
|

i
i et

y o
1 - ok :
[ % o
Coa
i SNy EGE
aat A .__m K .
[ il
0 ITE
(LS - 4 -
T ;
| ) ; .:...__ -____
balod e
? __ y . ..._p_r..
“ -4
v & § B
Y ./.r‘ _.Fn.u.
L > :
v NN J/f#
.—f =
RPN el

ANA0%d AVDH




Ta¥0H ST & JLN0E 3LVLS - 408 avoy










gL02 wioddy 2102 AlRY.0 [ vaqoy
g10¢| pajutoddeas aq o} x| PINOAA 2102 SSPItAA JU3
g10z| pajuioddeal ag o} ayl| PINOAA 2102 abpewe Apuez
8102 juoddy 2102 ueunp uinrelusg
810¢c juloddy 2102 Al UOSISYIIN plouly
810Z| pawioddess ag o) a3 PINOAA 2102 90SJES) Ja)od
gL0Z| pajuioddeal ag o) 3| PINOAA £102 ugje] 1jdd
salidx3 wia] mepN sjuaunuo) H3id 3SI0dH0d 3dVD
"uug) Jeak-auQ (‘podyungauuay| Jo sisjoa pase)sibas ate diysiaquiaiu
8y} Jo 9,5/ 1SED] 1B pUe Jald asi0diog aden ay) woly ualuisysy

[E1DJaWwWo are Aay) papinosd pajuiodde aq Aew sjuapisaiuon

"U3WJI3IRS JO pJeog au J0 JaquIdW B 3( [[BYS WOUM JO BUO 'SIaQLUALL 2JOLW JO A1)
6L02 s0jng (udy

020z Juioddy 1102 Jassaly e
s3I ULD))Y

6102 [263142g uzIE

gL0¢ uosA| Asipng

6102 1ahy UOPIOS)

Jno pawa) 2102 HOPUISESI-SUAEMN
paubjsay LL0Z Aedes-uesp

saJ|dx3] ua) maN sjuswwoy uopedjdx3 MIIATY INJWSSISSY 4O quvog
“SULS} SAINDSSUOD 82J\} 8y} PUOAS] 9IAIBS JO JESA BU0 [EUONIPPE UE J0)

Jagwaw e Julodde asned poob 1oy Aelu uawyda|eg

10 PJeog sy "amaIsuol jo pouad Jeak-auo JSYE Jn300 ABLW

jusWwjuioddeay ‘SLUS} 2AINJSSU0I 'lin 88y} Bulnas o) payiy siaquiay
"SR} JEA-23.Y] Bie SBLIB)Y “Suua) Jeak-aaly) je sjuawuiodde ainny e upm

‘siseq pasabbe)s e uo Ajjeniul swus) Jeak-sa1y) ('ssjeusa)e om) pue siaquaw aA1d)

gL0Z| pajuicddeat aq o} 1 PINOA 2102 UoISaM 9By “a
8102( Psjuloddeal aq o} @i PJNOM 2102 aojnq |udy
810Z] psjuloddeas aq o) @yl PINCAA 2102 YIWS pJeyory
810Z] Pajuloddead aq 0) 31 PINCA 2102 AsAeag UBWPSIS ‘H
8102 juioddy L10¢ SWepy sukepn
saJidxg Wia] MaN SIENYe) uopeldxg 3009 IALLVHISININGY
{'uLa) JeaA-auQ) “me| ul paulel) suossad 10 ‘pieog Buiuleld 'vaZ J0 SJaquaw

Jauuoj ae oym suosiad o) uamb aq ||Ieys 8ousiajaid "uonIsod auo Jo4 USLUIGI|aS
40 pg JO SIBQWBW JSUIO) O UBAID 30uass)aid "suolisod om) 104 { SIaqSL 8J0W 10 SAI])

SINIWLINIOddVYIY/SLINIWAINIOddY QUVO8A3ILLIWWOD L10Z



Aoueoep,

6L0¢ RS

sajeulaly

BLOZ AIeYD 's1apunes |aiveq

8102 ueboH jned

6102 asweg eleqieq

0zoz| pajuioddesal aq o} 831 PINOAA 2102 I _'peJabayig Sewer

0z0z| pajuioddesl aq o} 81| PINOAA 2102 nauing wepy

Sosldxg wia] MeN sjualWo) uopelldx3 33LLINWOD ONINNV1d HLMOND
S)ILUI| LWIS) ON ‘SISEQ patabDE)s € Uo SJesk 2aiyl Joj 8q

eys swsa) (‘ssagquiawl ajeulsle oMy pue siaquuisul 0>E

pajuioddea. aq o} 831l PIROM L10Z YOIZAA SUYD

pajuoddeal aqg o} Il PINOA 102 PIaYsSUB SBWOL ]

pajuioddeat aq o} 3| PINOAA __Zl0z JNA0JURIJ UOY

g10g| Pauioddeas aq o) 3yl PINOM 2102 sineq yer

sandxg uua) maN sjuaIWOs) uofedx3 JHVHM LNIWNHIAOD
W3] JEaA-auQ) ((HOGNUNGIULISY JO SJO)0A paialsiial ol

diysiaquiaw ay) Jo 95/ ISE3| JB PUB HEYAA JUSLLILISAOS) U]

W01} UBWIaYs) [Bl2JaWwWod ale Asy) paplacid pajulodde

aq Aew sjuapISaJUON "USWIIBAS O pieog ay) JO

Jaquaw B 20 p|NOYS LWOYM JO SUO 'Siaquudwi 210LW JO BAlY)

g102 abed .. 18119

8L0c ajueyoen yeseg

6L02 BIBILUOSSIOGET |0IBD

6L0T sawer auuar

8102 Jueld aop

0z0z| Ppsiluioddess 3G 0 8l PINOAA 2102 buuag uwelusg

salidx3 wJa ) MoN sjuaWWoy uopeJidx3 NOISSINWNOD NOLLYAYISNOD
alidxa jleys sula} siaquiaul au) Jo g/ 1Y) yans

siead 9alu)'om}'auo aq |[eys s L {'ssaquiaw asow Jo m>_u_|m

810¢! pawioddeal ag o) 8xil PINOAA 2102 Kejainas jabajyog eny

8102 Um“:_oaamm._ a0 o} 3] PINOAA 2102 Jainseal) .m._m_u:mm uuy

810¢| poinoddess 3q o} )il PINOA 2102 s|jjabied baj9

gLoz| pajuioddeas aq o} 3l PINOA 1102 uedlg epuA

810g| pojoddeasaqoiayipinopy| 2102 JIEYD "Zapuewa yiny|

s81)dx3 uual maN sjuswiwoy uonesjdxa FILLINNOD AY3L13W3D

‘uus) JeaA-suQ ('SJI9qLUBLL BI0W SO 9314 )

SLNIWLNIOddYIUISLNIWINIOddY QHVOa/33LLINNQOD L102




SW3X Jo j2IyD 2102 SUI00IyD) peig

BN AousbisW3ad1|od O 814D FA 4 piojues bIesD

juapusjuiadng AemuBiH Z10C SNED N

810z[JeUng Iajemalsep ‘JaIug aag 2102 JIOIN uejy

saJidxg uua) maN SIUIWIIOS uonesdx3 JILLINWWOD ALIIVS o18nd
Aaueoep,

Jejnbal 0] @AO| Qz0zZ| peluloddeal aq o) axij pjnopA 1102 TaNNwieag J eniN
sajelloa)y

8L02 jeoq sewoy |

6102 I ‘Apeig NI3ssny ‘g

6102 Asuoyewy o33 "q

yaunuioddeas y9as 10U $30(] 2102 2Zua||a4 12184

020¢] Ppajuioddeal aq 0} a3l PINOAA 4102 JasSa wew

sa)idx] wie] moN SjuaLIWog uoneljdx3 ayvos8 ONINNYId
“SULI3) 3AN28SUOD 9344) 8Y) puoiaq S21A18S JO JESK BuD

[PucippE Ue Joj Jaquiaw B Julodde asnES poob Jo) Aewl UBLWIS[aS Jo preog

3yl "8dla3suoU jo poliad JeaA-auo Jaye 1ndoo Aelu juswiuoddeay

'SULI3) BANINISSUOD )Ny 93y) BUIAISS 0) pajiul) sJaquiapy

'sISeq pasabbe)s e uo sieaf aaly) suue L (S22UIB)E OM] PUB SIALLIBLW BAI])

BLOZ J9AY uopIoD)

6102 "~ buedg asinoq

0z0g| Ppeuoddeal aq 0} 8yl PINCAA 2102 asimieq eiedqieg

salidxg wia] maN SjuswiLIos uopelidx3 FILLINNOD AVAM SNOSHYd
paJsbbe)s ‘suirs) Jeak 881y "S1aquiaLl aJ0w Jo aany I1]

gLOC UBWPOOAA PJEYIIY

6102 anouj uesng

0coc juloddy 4102 uoynng yiew

‘siaquiay Jodjungauuay

salidx] ule)] mepN SjuaWILIOY uonesidx3 JALLIAWNOD YIAIRE UNNGINNIN

{iuswaaiby (€907-J31U| Jad) SpIE0q Uioq A PaaIbe Jl J9GWBW JUBpISaIuoy

2y} 40} pajuindde aq Aew sjEWSIE Uy Duneall E pUape o) 3)qeuUn S| JaquaLl

Je[nba) ay) §t KjiiedidIUNW 4oBa Wolj S19qUUIsty S} Jo 2100 JO SUo

10} sisquaw sjeuiaj|e 8ABY UBD pue (spJeoq yloq Aq Apuiol pjurodde

‘HoayUNGaUUaY JO YUNGauuayy Jauy)ia U] buipisas jou)

JuapisaJuou auo “Anedisiunwy (988 Wol) 9aly) 'Slaquawl USASS)

SINTWLNIOddVIH/SLNIWLNIODDY ONYOSEILLINNOD 2102



juioddy 2102 pJojueg bierd

uioddy /102 SNE| [2eudIy

pajuioddeal 2q 0] 31| PINOAA 2102 UIAIRES) US]SIy

810z juloddy LL0g Tiey? 'uuewysi, AU

JILLININOD MIVM3QIS

sancdxg uua) man SJIaWLL0Y uogedrdxy ‘LLIB] JEaA-aUQD ("S19qusw 210w 10 9ai])
6102 Aemuon) piaeq

jumodde uapJepn usy(IPus 2102 JEYD 'Yaea yasang

juroddy 1102 J2URd7 4 sapey)

pajuioddeas ag 03 3] PINOAA 2102 SSPIM 'd 213

8102 ioddy LL02 LUO}SBUNY USASIS T

salydx wia) maN J3LLINANOD NOLLYAHASNOD HSIATIIHS
(‘32UBUIPIO UONEAISSUOD

salidxg uuaj map SJUaWIWon uolesidx3y Ysyliays 84} 0} BUIRIOIIB 'SISqUIBW USASS JO LUNLWIIXEW! "3A1 JO LUNLUILIN)
pajuioddear aq o} 8y PINOAA 2102 UBLU|UO}S DUUBZNS

pajuioddeal aq o} 3y PINOAA £102 Jannuwiead euin

jutoddy 1102 20Q ' uaydalg

juioddy 1102 SING Al3quy

8102( pajuioddeas aq 0} 8xll pINop 2102 SWwepy yeses

salidx3 urat meN sjuswwogy uonedx3 33LLININOD 331 3AVHS
W3} JESA-aUQ [ SIaqilaw aJow Jo 881y )

pajuioddes) 89 0) 3%| PINOA 4102 pesy ulue ydasor

jujcdde 2102 uosSuYyor pieyary

pajuioddeas ag 0] ayy PINOAA 2102 amnnon uaydslg

810Z| Ppajuroddeal aq 0} 8| PINOAA £102 faau0D qog

saJidxg uwuaj maN SIUBILIOY uopendx3y FFLIINNOD AHOSIAQY H3IM3S
W) JesA-auQy ("sJaquusLw 210w JQ aay))

juloddy 2102 SMOLNg SalLer

2102 juloddy 2102 UBLIPAS pIeydIy

sandxg uta] man sjuawIwo) uonelidx3 FILLINNOD MO0 avod

BP0 ANBAISINILPY ) PA)SI| JOU SI SaRILIWI0D SIY]

SINIFWINIOddVIHISINIWLINIOLdY GUVYOS/IILLINWOD LL0T



6Log aoing Judy

6102 uapuUassa avAepn

6102 18hy uoplog

8L0c Aeuoy uvear

gL0e uebipen |ney

020g| Pajuioddes: aq o} )yl PINOM 2102 i12bajyog uaiey|

0z0Z Jufoddy £L02 plesabzngy sewer

sandxg uue] meN SHUBLIICS uoneldxg vaz

"SULI3) BAINJ3SUO0D 831y) 8y} puokaq 8351A13s JO JE3A BUOG [EUOHIPPE UE 10)

equiaw e julodde asnes poob Joy Aelu UsW)I3jaS JO pIEOT DY @dIAIasuoU Jo polad 13

| Jaye Jnazo Aews wawjuioddeay “swia) 2ANNISSUCD )N} 92dy] DUIAJSS 0) pajwi) siagquusp

Siseq pa1obbess e uo sieak aaiy) Joj 89 [EYS SWIS) (' SISqUal UBASS)

SLNIWLNIOddVIHISLINIWINIOddY QH¥YOS/3ILLINNOD 10T




8-
Agenda

ltem
Divider

<G



\n

ING-SMBUNE EfIayS

ING-SMOUNEIN BlldayS

s|eaddy Jo pieog buluoz

INg-SMaYNeEW ejieys

ING-SMaUNEN E|IBUS

23)ILILIOY) 981 apeys

sbbug 'v youed

sbbug "y youed

pleog Buiwue|d

nebbeq 'y usjy

aa)IWwWo) buluue|d ymoicy

asimIeg '3 UENIS DdIWS

sbbug 'y youed sbbug v youed aspiwwo) Alejes agnd
sbbug v youed sbbug "V Youed ‘SWIN
sBbug youed s6bug youed ‘nebbeq v U9y 9aNILUILIOD) JUSLLISAAU|
SUIY2INH ‘M pJemp3a SUIUSINH "M pJempa pieog Aueiqr] saneis)

nebbeq 'y uay

HEUAA JUBSWILIBAOS)

INg-SMaUNe Blioys

ING-SMaUNEN ellays

senIWWOoD) AIOSIADY UoBag SH300Y 85009

SUIYOINH "M PIEMPT

SUIYOINH “M PIEMPT

aspuwo) Jald astodiod aden

8L02-L10Z AInr

L10Z-9L0Z AInp

saaItL0Y)

SIALLVLINISIudIH NIJWLIT1IS




